
 
 
 

 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 

 
 
Date Wednesday 28 September 2016 

Time 10.00 am 

Venue Committee Room 1A, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 

[Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman’s 

agreement] 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest, if any   

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 June 2016  (Pages 1 - 6) 

4. External Audit Annual Review of the Return for the year ended 31 
March 2016.  (Pages 7 - 18) 

 Joint Report of the Interim Corporate Director: Neighbourhood Services 
and Interim Corporate Director: Resources / Treasurer to the Joint 
Committee. 

5. Quarterly Performance and Operational Report  (Pages 19 - 66) 

 Report of the Bereavement Services Manager. 

6. Financial Monitoring Report 2016/17: Position at 31/08/16 with 
Projected Outturn to 31/03/17  (Pages 67 - 72) 

 Joint Report of the Interim Corporate Director: Neighbourhood Services 
and the Interim Corporate Director: Resources / Treasurer to the Joint 
Committee. 

7. Risk Register 2016/17 - Update  (Pages 73 - 82) 

 Joint Report of the Interim Corporate Director: Neighbourhood Services 
and the Interim Corporate Director: Resources / Treasurer to the Joint 
Committee. 

8. Annual Review of the System of Internal Audit  (Pages 83 - 96) 

 Joint Report of the Interim Corporate Director: Neighbourhood Services 
and the Interim Corporate Director: Resources / Treasurer to the Joint 
Committee. 
 
 



9. Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Management Services 2017-2020  
(Pages 97 - 112) 

 Report of the Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager. 

10. Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 
 

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
20 September 2016 
 
 
To: The Members of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 

 
 
Durham County Council:- 
 
Councillors: O Temple (Chairman), A Batey, K Dearden, C Hampson, I Jewell, 
O Milburn, T Nearney, M Plews and W Stelling 
 
Gateshead Council: 
 
Councillors K Dodds (Vice-Chairman), M Charlton, D Davidson, L Green, 
J Lee and M Ord 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Lucy Gladders Tel: 03000 269712 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
At a Meeting of Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee held in Mountsett Crematorium 
Meeting Room, Mountsett Crematorium, Dipton on Monday 27 June 2016 at 9.30 am 
 
 
Present: 
 

Councillor O Temple (Chairman) 

 

Members of the Committee: 
Durham County Council 
Councillors A Batey, C Hampson, I Jewell, O Milburn, T Nearney and M Plews 
 
Gateshead Council: 

Councillors J Lee 
 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors K Dodds, M Charlton, D Davidson, L 
Green and M Ord (Gateshead Council) 
 
2 Declarations of Interest, if any.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3 Membership of the Joint Committee  
 
The Chair advised that the membership of the joint committee had remained unchanged 
however there was currently a vacancy on the Gateshead membership due to the 
resignation of Councillor Patricia Ronan. 
 
4 Appointment of Chair  
 
That Councillor O Temple be re-elected as Chairman for the ensuing year. 
 
5 Appointment of Vice-Chair  
 
That Councillor K Dodds be re-elected as Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year. 
 
6 Appointment of Treasurer to the Joint Committee  
 
The Clerk advised that P Darby had recently been appointed as Interim Corporate Director 
Resources and with such was now appointed as Treasurer to the Joint Committee.  
 
Resolved: 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



That P Darby, Interim Corporate Director Resources be appointed as Treasurer to the Joint 
Committee until such time as a permanent appointment is made. 
 
7 Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 April 2016  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2016 were confirmed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
8 Review of the Terms of Reference  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Clerk to the Joint Committee which provided 
details of a review of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee’s Constitution, which, in 
accordance with the Annual Governance Statement requirements is reviewed on an annual 
basis. 
 
The Clerk advised that the review had not highlighted any requirements to change the 
current Constitution or governance arrangements set out within. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Constitution as set out in Appendix 2 of the report be reapproved following a full 
review which had been completed in accordance with Annual Governance Statement 
requirements. 
 
9 Annual Governance Statement 2015/16  
 
The Joint Committee considered a joint report of the Interim Corporate Director 
Neighbourhood Services and Interim Corporate Director Resources and Treasurer to the 
Joint Committee which provided details if the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for the 
year April 2015-March 2016. The AGS was presented for approval as part of the 
consideration of the Joint Committee’s Return for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 
(for copy see file of minutes). 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the 2015/16 Annual Governance Statement be approved as part of consideration of 
the Joint Committee’s Return for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
10 Revenue Outturn and Joint Committees Return for the Financial Year Ended 
31/03/2016  
 
The Joint Committee considered a joint report of the Interim Corporate Director 
Neighbourhood Services and Interim Corporate Director Resources which sought approval 
of the Joint Committee’s Return for Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2016. The report further included details of the final outturn 
position against the approved budgets for 2015/16 (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Principal Accountant reported that the final outturn position was broadly in line with the 
provisional outturn reported to the Joint Committee on 29 April 2016 with only a minor 
change (£2,433 decrease) to the overall net income for the year.  

Page 2



 
With regard to earmarked reserves the Principal Accountant advised that contributions to 
the earmarked reserves were (£140,383) more than originally budgeted, primarily due to 
the increase in cremation income during the year, the over provision in the CAMEO 
abatement budget and the Business Rates refund, offset by the additional costs relating to 
the car park extension, albeit lower than previously anticipated. 
 
It was further reported that in line with the MCJC Reserves Policy, a transfer to the General 
Reserve of (£16,920) was required as part of the final accounts process. This resulted in a 
net transfer to the Cremator Replacement Reserve of £265,921). The retained reserves of 
the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee at 31 March 2015, was £1,001,158 along with 
a General Reserve of £242,070 giving a total reserves and balances position of £1,243,248 
at year end.  
 
The Principal Accountant then asked members to approve sections 1 and 2 of the Joint 
Committees Return for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
Resolved: 
 
i) That the revenue outturn position as at 31 March 2016, including the year end 

position with regards to the reserves and balances of the Joint Committee.  
ii) That The Joint Committee approve Section1 – Accounting Statements 2015/16 of 

the Joint Committees Return for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 
iii) That the Joint Committee approve Section 2 – Accounting Statements 2015/16 of 

the Joint Committees Return for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 
iv) That the Chair, Clerk and Treasurer sign the Joint Committees Return for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
11 Quarterly Performance and Operational Report  
 
The Joint Committee considered a report of the Bereavement Services Manager which 
provided an update relating to performance and other operational matters (for copy see file 
of minutes). 
 
It was reported that there were 257 cremations undertaken during the period 1 April 2016 
to 31 May 2016, compared to 198 in the comparable period last year, an increase of 59 
year on year. With regard to the sale of memorial plaques it was reported that during the 
period 2 plaques had been sold (£652), compared to 3 (£1,215) in the same period last 
year. 
 
As previously reported an AED (Automated External Defibrillator) had been purchased. All 
staff had now been trained and the defibrillator was now in place. 
 
Moving on, it was reported that a Business Administration Apprentice was employed in 
2014 on a 2 year temporary contract, which was due to come to an end on 14 July 2016. It 
was noted that the contract would not be extended and the position be frozen. Members 
agreed that the position be frozen until a suitable replacement could be appointed. 
 
Details were then reported in respect of the 50th Year Anniversary Celebration which was 
to be held on 23 July 2016. Members were reminded to let the Bereavement Services 

Page 3



Manager know if they were able / unable to attend. It was further reported that an open 
event would be held following the service and it had been agreed by the Communications 
team that this could now be opened up to the public. 
 
The Bereavement Services Manager then went on to report that the recycling of metals 
scheme had generated £4,444 and a cheque for this value had been presented to 
Derwentside Hospice Care Foundation. 
 
Further details were reported with regard to the ICCM Learning Convention and Exhibition 
2016 and it was proposed that the Bereavement Services Manager and the Chair attend 
the conference as representatives of the Joint Committee. 
 
Moving on to the issue of car parking the Bereavement Services Manager advised that as 
previously reported the car park had been extended to 88 spaces although on some 
occasions the capacity was still inadequate. He therefore presented 3 options for the Joint 
Committee’s consideration. Details of each were included within the report and members’ 
views were sought. 
 
In conclusion details were reported with regard to the replacement of cremators and 
installation of mercury abatement plant. It was reported that ATI were the successful 
company during the very thorough and competitive tender process. Durham County 
Council’s Design Team were currently working alongside the cremator manufacturer in 
order to design the equipment to fit in with the propose extension. Work was progressing 
well and it was anticipated that construction works would commence January 2017. 
 
Councillor Temple added that he felt fortunate to be involved in the procurement process 
and had found the process extremely interesting. He further added that he was extremely 
impressed with the quality and price offered by the supplier and was hopeful of a good 
result for the Crematorium. 
 
Councillor Batey in referencing the apprentice’s position and the work of the Economy & 
Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny’s work, added that she would like to see the position re-
advertised. Councillor Jewell further commented that extra care should be taken with the 
selection of the next apprentice. 
 
Moving on to discuss the issues surrounding car parking, Members agreed that Option C, 
to continue to monitor the situation be agreed. Councillor Batey added that she wanted to 
pass on her congratulations to the team on the car park improvement works and new 
spaces created adding that she had noted that this had alleviated car parking problems 
during well attended funerals. 
 
Resolved: 
 
i) That the current performance be noted. 
ii) That the completion of the defibrillator staff training be noted. 
iii) That the situation with regards to the Business Administration Apprentice post be 

noted and that the position be re-advertised at the end of the 2 year contract period. 
iv) That the 50th anniversary celebrations be noted. 
v) That the distribution of recycling income received to the respective charity be noted. 

Page 4



vi) That the Bereavement Services Manager and Chair of the Joint Committee attend 
the next ICCM Learning Convention and Exhibition. 

vii) That Option C, in respect of car parking be agreed and the situation continue to be 
monitored. 

viii) That progress with regards to the cremator replacement project be noted. 
                                                                                                                                                                                       
12 Forward Plan 2016/17  
 
The Joint Committee considered a report of the Interim Corporate Director Resources and 
Treasurer to the Joint Committee which set out the suggested forward plan of meetings of 
the Joint Committee for the forthcoming year (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the proposed schedule of meetings as set out in Appendix 2 of the report be 
approved. 
 
13 Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting is of    

sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.  
 
Iconography – Arrangements for covering the existing fixed cross in the Chapel 
area. 
 
The Bereavement Services Manager reported that following discussions at the previous 
meeting, a quote had been sought for the supply and installation of an electronic curtain, 
which could be used to cover the cross which was displayed on the main marble wall in the 
Chapel area. He advised that work would cost in the region of £4,000 and Members views 
were sought. 
 
M Morley, Gateshead Council added that following the last meeting he had checked what 
arrangements were in place at Birtley and Saltwell Crematoria and noted that both had 
received requests for the cross to be covered during services. Arrangements to do so had 
subsequently put in place. 
 
Councillor Nearney commented that he felt that the curtain should be installed to provide 
peace of mind to those using the crematorium at a very sensitive time. Members reiterated 
these comments and agreed that the works should be undertaken. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Bereavement Services Manager make arrangements for the supply and 
installation of an electronic curtain to be fitted. 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Mountsett Crematorium Joint 
Committee 
 

28 September 2016 
 
External Audit Annual Review of the 
Return for the year ended 31 March 
2016. 
 

 
 
 

Joint Report of Oliver Sherratt – Interim Corporate Director: 
Neighbourhood Services; Paul Darby – Interim Corporate Director: 
Resources & Treasurer to the Joint Committee 

 
Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to present to the Mountsett Crematorium Joint 
Committee, the External Auditors (BDO LLP) Annual Review of the Joint 
Committees Return for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

 
Background Information 

2. In June 2016, in line with the statutory requirements of a Smaller Relevant Body, 
the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee submitted the Joint Committees 
Return for the year ended 31 March 2016 to BDO LLP for audit under the limited 
assurance audit regime.  

 
External Audit Findings and Required Action  
 
3. The Audit has now been completed and has not highlighted any material 

weaknesses around the Joint Committees system of internal control and report 
no exceptions to the Return. 
 

Recommendations and Reasons 
 
4. Members of the Joint Committee approve the Joint Committees Return for the 

year ended 31 March 2016 including the External Report 2015/16 Certificate 
(attached at Appendix 2). 

 
Background Papers 
 
Final accounts working papers and reports to / minutes of the Joint Committee in 
year 
 

Contact(s): Phil Curran        03000 261967 
                      Ed Thompson    03000 263481 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



 

 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 
 

Finance 
 

There are no financial implications associated with this report.  
 

Staffing 
 

There are no staffing implications associated with this report. 
 

Risk 

No issues were highlighted in the External Auditor’s Issues Arising Report for the 
year ended 31 March 2016 thus demonstrating the Joint Committee’s governance 
arrangements and awareness of risks associated with the Crematorium operations.  
 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Duty 
 

There are no equality and diversity implications associated with this report. Equality 
Impact Assessments, where appropriate, are undertaken as a matter of routine part 
of the development of any new policy or policy change. 
 

Accommodation  
 

There are no Accommodation implications associated with this report. 
 

Crime and Disorder 
 

There are no Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report. 
 

Human Rights 
There are no implications associated with this report. 
 

Consultation 
 

None. However, officers of Gateshead Council were provided with a copy of the 
report and given opportunity to comment / raise any detailed questions on the 
content of the report in advance of circulation to members of the Mountsett 
Crematorium. 
 

Procurement  

There are no implications associated with this report. 
 

Disability Discrimination Act  

There are no implications associated with this report. 
 

Legal Implications  

The Accounts and Audit Regulations and Code of Practice set out the legal and 
regulatory framework in which the accounts of the Joint Committee are prepared. 
The proposals within this report seek to strengthen the Joint Committees compliance 
with these  

  

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To provide Members of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee with an 

update relating to performance and other operational matters. 

Performance Update - Number of Cremations 

2 The table below provides details of the number of cremations for the period 1 

June 2016 to 31 August 2016 inclusive, with comparative data in the same 
periods last year: 

2015/16 2016/17 Change 

June 99 112 + 13 

July 108 112 + 4  

August 90 118 + 28 

TOTAL 297 342 + 45 

  
3. In summary there were 342 cremations undertaken during 1 June 2016 to 31 

August 2016, compared to 297 in the comparable period last year and an 
increase of 45 year on year. The profile of where families came from can be 
seen below.  

 
     Gateshead      113 
     Durham      189  
     Outside Area        40 
     Total       342 

 
Memorials 

 
4. The table below outlines the number and value of the memorials sold in period 

June to August 2016 compared to the same period the previous year.  
 

(June – August) 2015/16 (June – August) 2016/17 

Number                   £  Number                   £     

Large Plaques 11                4,291    4                1,728    

Small Plaques                              0                       0                        8                2,088 

Total 11                4,291   12                3,816   

 

 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 
 
28 September 2016 
 
Mountsett Crematorium Performance 
and Operational Report  
 
 

 

Report of Graham Harrison, Bereavement Services Manager 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



5. In overall terms the number and value of memorials sold of 12 / £3,816, 
compared to 11 / £4,291 in the same period last year and shows an increase of 
1 plaque, however a decrease in income of £475. 

 
Operational Matters 
 
Business Admin Apprentice 
 
6. Members agreed to fill the vacant business admin apprentice position at the 

June 2016 meeting. 
 
7. This has now been progressed and interviews will be held on 23 September 

2016. 
 
Green Flag Application 
 
8. The Green Flag Award recognises good quality parks and green spaces, 

which demonstrates to visitors that sites are well maintained and well 
managed with excellent facilities. Mountsett Crematorium was once again 
successful in retaining its Green Flag Award for the fifth year running, which is 
a great achievement. 
 

9. This is once again testimony to the dedication of the staff working at the 
Crematorium and is in addition to the award of Gold Star Status by the 
Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium Management. 
 

Recycling of Metals Scheme 
 
10.  The Recycling of metals scheme has produced a surplus of £350,000 

nationally from the 2015/16 collection. 
 

11. Members may recall that a list for future nominations was produced and the 
Macmillan Cancer Support has been nominated for the next available 
distribution of funds. This nomination has been submitted and I am currently 
awaiting a response. 

 
Mountsett Crematorium 50th Year Anniversary 
 
12. Members will recall that Mountsett Crematorium marked its 50th year 

anniversary on Saturday 23rd July 2016. 
 
13. This special occasion was marked with a Memorial service which was 

attended by approximately 50 guests and a booklet covering the 50 years was 
distributed to those in attendance. 

 
14. The event also provided an opportunity for members of the public to visit the 

crematorium and take a look around in the afternoon. Unfortunately due to the 
delay in publicising the event only two members of the public attended. 

 
Iconography 

Page 20



15. Members agreed at the June 2016 meeting to install an electronic curtain 
which could be used to cover the cross on the main marble wall within the 
Chapel.  

 
16. Discussions with the manufacturer indicated that the curtains would prove 

difficult to maintain and keep clean and suggested an alternative electronic 
roll down blind in keeping with the dark marble wall. Following further 
discussions with the Chair it was agreed to progress this alternative option 
and works are expected to be completed during October 2016. 

 
Replacement of Cremators and Installation of Mercury Abatement Plant 

 
17.  Members may recall from the June 2016 meeting that A.T.I. were successful 

in tendering for the replacement cremators. 
 
18. Durham County Council’s design team are still working with the cremator 

manufacturer in order to design the equipment to fit in with the proposed 
extension and then Direct Services will be able to price the proposed works. 

 
19. It is envisaged that the extension project could commence on site as early as 

January 2017 and that A.T.I. could be on site by June 2017. 
 
20. A payment to A.T.I. for 25% on the contract value will be required once the 

advanced payment bond has been agreed and signed off by both parties. 
 

Service Asset Management Plan 
 
21. The Crematorium’s fourth Service Asset Management Plan (SAMP) was 

presented to Members on 25 September 2015 and has now been amended to 
provide further direction and highlight future investment requirements and 
budget pressures for the Joint Committee. The SAMP is attached at Appendix 
2 and will need to be refined in line with any future decisions taken by 
Members. 

 
22. The Service Asset Management Plan is split into 4 priorities of maintenance 

need and includes all of the planned crematorium improvement works: 
 

Urgent essential works for 2017/18 have been included within 
crematorium improvement works, estimated to the sum of £2,561,757. 
Some of the works include: 

 

• Re decoration works 

• Carry out extension to crematorium and cremators 

• Installation of memorial towers 

• Installation of air conditioning 

• Replacement of lectern 

• Replacement of carpets to office area 

• Re vamp of remaining existing shrub beds 
 

Page 21



Priority 2 works for 2018/19 have been estimated to total £6,000 as 
shown below: 

 

• Installation of memorial towers 
 

Priority 3 works for 2019/20 have now been costed to the sum of 
£18,500 and some of the works include: 
 

• Re-Decoration Works 

• Installation of memorial towers 
 
Priority 4 works for 2020 onwards have been costed to the sum of 
£92,000 and some of the works include: 
 

• Re-Decoration Works 

• Carry out Re-lining of cremators x1 

• Carry out Re-lining of hearths x1 
 
 

Recommendations and Reasons 
 
23. It is recommended that Members of the Mountsett Joint Committee: 
 

• Note the current performance of the crematorium. 

• Note the current situation with regards to the business admin position. 

• Note the continued success with regards to the Green Flag Award. 

• Note the current round of money available with regards to the recycling 
of metal scheme. 

• Note the recent 50 year anniversary event. 

• Note the progress with regards to the iconography within the Chapel. 

• Note the current position with regards to the cremator replacement. 

• Note and agree the content of the Service Asset Management Plan 
attached at Appendix 2, which will be factored into the budget planning 
for 2017/18. 

 
 

Contact:     Graham Harrison, 03000 265606 

  

Page 22



 
 
Finance  
As identified in the report with regards to the position of the Income. 
  
Staffing 
 
There are no implications 
 
Risk 
 
There are no implications 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
There are no implications 
 
Accommodation 
 
There are no implications 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
There are no implications 
 
Human Rights 
 
There are no implications 
 
Consultation 
 
None, however, Officers of Gateshead Council were provided with a copy of the report 
and given opportunity to comment/raise any detailed questions on the content of the 
report in advance of circulation to members of the Mountsett Crematorium. 
 
Procurement 
 
There are no implications 
 
Disability Issues 
 
There are no implications 
 
Legal Implications 
 
As outlined in the report.

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 23



Appendix 2:  Service Asset Management Plan  

 

Page 24



   0
 

                

S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

s
s

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

M
o

u
n

ts
e

tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 

 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
e
n

s
it
iv

e
, 

re
s
p

e
c
tf

u
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

fi
tt

in
g

 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

e
re

a
v
e
d
. 

 

O
u
r 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

 

 
 

 

Page 25



 
2

  

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 

 
F

o
re

w
o
rd

  
4
 

 
T

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 i
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

 

1
. 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

5
 

 
1
.1

 H
o
w

 w
e
 f

it
 i
n
 w

it
h
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 G

a
te

s
h
e
a
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
  
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

1
.2

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 -

  
T

h
e
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 J

o
in

t 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

1
.3

 T
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
  

6
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
 

9
 

2
. 

 3
 

O
u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

2
.1

  
 T

h
e
 V

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

  

T
h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

1
0
 

y
e
a
rs

  

1
0
 

1
2
 

1
2
 

 
T

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 

  
 1

5
 

4
. 

A
s
s
e
t 

s
u
p
p
ly

 p
ro

fi
le

  
1
6
 

 
4
.1

 
O

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

  
1
6
 

 
 

4
.1

.1
 

M
o
u
n
ts

e
tt

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

  
1
6
 

 
 

4
.1

.2
 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 C
h
a
p
e
l 
 

1
7
 

 
 

4
.1

.3
 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
o
f 

R
e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
  

1
7
 

 
4
.2

 
H

o
w

 o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 a

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

  

4
.2

.1
 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
/O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
  

4
.2

.2
 

S
u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
  

4
.2

.3
 

S
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
  

4
.2

.4
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

  

4
.2

.5
 

E
n
e
rg

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

1
7
 

1
7
 

1
8
 

1
9
 

1
9
 

2
0
 

Page 26



 
3

 5
. 

 6
. 
  
  
  
  
  

 A
s
s
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

  

5
.1

  
  
 O

u
r 

id
e
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

S
u
p
p
ly

 a
n
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 (

g
a
p
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

) 

6
.1

  
  
 H

o
w

 o
u
r 

‘id
e
a
l’ 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

 d
if
fe

rs
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

‘e
x
is

ti
n
g

’ 
a
s
s
e
t 
b
a
s
e
  

 

2
1
 

2
1
 

2
4
 

2
4
 

 
6
.1

.1
 

C
re

m
a
to

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M

e
rc

u
ry

 A
b
a
te

m
e
n
t 

6
.1

.2
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 

6
.1

.3
 

S
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
  

 

6
.1

.4
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 

6
.1

.5
 

E
n
e
rg

y
 

2
4
 

2
6
 

2
7
 

3
0
 

3
0
 

 
T

h
e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
  

 

7
. 

C
lo

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
  

  
3
1
 

 
7
.1

 
H

o
w

 w
e
 i
n
te

n
d
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 

 7
.1

.1
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
  

3
1
 

3
1
 

    

7
.2

 
H

o
w

 w
e
 i
n
te

n
d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 g

a
p
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
  

7
.3

 
H

o
w

 w
e
 i
n
te

n
d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 f

u
tu

re
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
  

  
  
  
  
  
 7

.3
.1

  
O

p
ti
o
n
s
 A

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 a
n
d
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

D
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
  

  
  
  
  
  
 7

.3
.2

  
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
 

3
2
 

3
2
 

3
2
 

3
4
 

8
. 

O
u
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

  

8
.1

 
C

re
m

a
to

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
-l
in

in
g
 

8
.2

 
O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 (

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
) 

8
.2

.1
 

M
a

in
te

n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

8
.3

 
S

u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 

8
.4

 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 

3
7
 

3
7
 

3
8
 

3
8
 

4
0
 

4
0
 

9
. 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 A

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
  

4
0
 

 
 

 
 

Page 27



 
4

    

 

 

O
li
v
e
r 

S
h
e
rr

a
tt

 
In

te
ri
m

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

        

 F
o

re
w

o
rd

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  W

e
lc

o
m

e
 t

o
 o

u
r 

fi
ft

h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

S
A

M
P

) 
fo

r 
M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

a
n
d
 l

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

is
 o

u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

k
e

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
u
r 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

it
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 u

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 w

a
y
, 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 p

la
n
 r

e
p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

m
o
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 J
o
in

t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 
to

 
it
s
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
  

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 
v
ie

w
 
o
u
r 

p
re

m
is

e
s
, 

n
o
t 

s
im

p
ly

 
a
s
 a

 

b
u
ild

in
g

 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

b
u

t 
a
s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
s
t 

s
e
n
s
e

 d
ri
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
a

l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
  

 W
e
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 s

e
e
 o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 a

s
 a

 w
a

y
 o

f 
h
e
lp

in
g
 u

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

a
n

d
 d

ig
n
if
ie

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

. 

 I 
a
m

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
is

 n
e

w
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

          

Page 28



 
5

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  
                                         

1
. 

 I
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

  

 O
u
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

o
u
r 

c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
a
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

o
u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 a

n
d

 i
s
: 

 

•
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
, 
re

s
p

e
c
tf

u
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

it
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

e
re

a
v
e

d
; 

•
 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
ti
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 i
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
re

a
v
e
d
 

o
n
 
fu

n
e
ra

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 
g
iv

e
 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 
in

 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 
th

e
 
fu

n
e
ra

l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 
if
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
; 

•
 

T
o
 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

h
ig

h
 
q
u
a

lit
y
 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 
o
f 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 
in

 
c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 
a

n
d
 
c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

, 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
; 

•
 

T
o
 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

e
 
p
ro

p
e
r 

re
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 
a
n

d
 
c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 
w

it
h

 
fa

ir
 
R

u
le

s
 
a

n
d
 

R
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
v
is

it
o
rs

; 

•
 

T
o
 

w
o
rk

 
in

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h
 

o
u
r 

c
o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 

a
t 

G
a
te

s
h
e
a
d

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

M
o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

  

O
u
r 

v
is

io
n

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 o
u
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 a
im

 w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 a

 

re
a
l 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 S

A
M

P
 i
s
 a

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 e

n
a
b

le
 u

s
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

v
is

io
n
 b

y
:-

 

 

•
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 i
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

it
s
 v

is
io

n
 

•
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 
th

e
 
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
, 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 

s
u
it
a

b
ili

ty
, 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
a
n
d
 
e

n
e
rg

y
 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 a

n
d
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
ir
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

n
e
s
s
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

•
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 g
a

p
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ra

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
 t

h
e
 g

a
p
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

fu
tu

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

•
 

M
a
p
p

in
g
 a

 w
a

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 t

a
k
e
s
 i

n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 O
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 
‘s

ta
n
d

 
a
lo

n
e

’ 
S

A
M

P
 

w
ill

 
in

fo
rm

 
th

e
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
S

A
M

P
. 

T
h
e

 

 

M
o
u
n
ts

e
tt

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 

Page 29



 
6

                                              

N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
s
 S

A
M

P
 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 G
ro

u
p

in
g

 S
A

M
P

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
  

 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i

ts
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 o
b
ta

in
s
 b

e
s
t 

v
a

lu
e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 

th
e

y
 o

c
c
u
p

y
 a

n
d
 g

e
ts

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 r
e
tu

rn
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
s
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
ts

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 
  
  
  

 1
.1

  
 H

o
w

 w
e
 f

it
 i

n
 w

it
h

 D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
n

d
 G

a
te

s
h

e
a

d
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
  

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

 U
n
d
e
r 

th
e

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

C
J
C

 C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

, 
th

e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 l
e

g
a

lly
 v

e
s
te

d
 i
n

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 a

 J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d
 G

a
te

s
h
e
a

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 A
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 e

n
g

a
g
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 b

y
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

  
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 

w
it
h

in
 a

 s
tr

ic
t 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
, 

c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

b
y
 
w

h
ic

h
 
th

e
 
M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 
J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 
d
ir
e
c
ts

 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n

tr
o
ls

 
it
s
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 
(S

e
c
ti
o

n
 
1
.2

 

b
e
lo

w
 s

e
ts

 t
h

is
 o

u
t 
in

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
d
e
ta

il.
).

 

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 B

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

e
a

m
 (

p
a
rt

 o
f 

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
) 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 o
n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

lig
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
’ 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 
p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 
th

ro
u
g

h
 
th

e
 
D

u
rh

a
m

 
C

o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
c
il,

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

P
la

n
 
2
0
1

5
-1

8
 
a

n
d
 
th

e
 

G
a
te

s
h
e
a

d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

2
0
3
0

 V
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

b
e
lo

w
. 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

T
h

e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c

il
, 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
5

-1
8
 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 2

0
1
5
-1

8
, 

a
lig

n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

m
b
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 a
n
d
 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 a

 r
o
le

, 
a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

to
 p

la
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 P

la
n
. 

In
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

te
rm

s
 t

h
e
 P

la
n
 l

in
k
s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 o

u
r 

M
e
d

iu
m

-T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 a

n
d
 i

n
 

b
ro

a
d

 t
e
rm

s
 a

ls
o
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 

w
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

to
 b

e
 o

u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

P
la

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 b

y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

a
n
 s

h
a
p
e

 o
u
r 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 a
n
d
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
: 
  
  
“
 A

lt
o

g
e

th
e

r 
B

e
tt

e
r 

D
u

rh
a

m
”
 

  A
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

P
la

n
 a

re
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
is

 o
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 v

is
io

n
. 

T
h
e
 P

la
n
 a

ls
o
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 

fi
v
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 
w

ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 u

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 v

is
io

n
, 

a
s
 
w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

p
ri
o
ri

ty
 t

h
e

m
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
s
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
h
e
s
e
s
 a

re
; 

Page 30



 
7

                                              

 

•
 

A
lt

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
–
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

 v
ib

ra
n
t 
e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 a

n
d

 p
u
tt

in
g

 r
e

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

p
la

n
s
; 

 •
 

A
lt

o
g

e
th

e
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
–
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
; 

 •
 

A
lt

o
g

e
th

e
r 

s
a

fe
r 

–
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

 s
a
fe

r 
a
n
d

 m
o
re

 c
o
h
e
s
iv

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

; 

 •
 

A
lt

o
g

e
th

e
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

fo
r 

c
h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 –
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

n
d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
e

ir
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 E

v
e
ry

 C
h

ild
 

M
a
tt
e
rs

; 

 •
 

A
lt

o
g

e
th

e
r 

g
re

e
n

e
r 

–
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 ‘
liv

e
a

b
le

; 
lo

c
a
l 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
, 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
h
a

lle
n
g

e
s
; 

 •
 

A
lt

o
g

e
th

e
r 

B
e
tt

e
r 

C
o

u
n
c
il

 –
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 

fi
v
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 t
h
e
m

e
s
. 

 
T

h
e
 A

lt
o

g
e
th

e
r 

B
e
tt
e
r 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

s
tr

a
n
d

 a
lig

n
s
 c

lo
s
e
s
t 

to
 B

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 ,
 b

y
:  

 

•
 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 

•
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

T
h

e
 G

a
te

s
h

e
a

d
 2

0
3
0

 V
is

io
n

 

T
h
e
 V

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

G
a
te

s
h
e

a
d
 i
n
 2

0
3
0
 i
s
 ‘
lo

c
a
l 
p
e

o
p
le

 r
e
a

lis
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
n
jo

y
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 

lif
e
 i
n
 a

 h
e
a

lt
h

y
, 

e
q
u

a
l,
 p

ro
s
p
e
ro

u
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 G
a
te

s
h
e
a
d

’.
 

T
h
e
 V

is
io

n
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 6

 b
id

 i
d
e
a
s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

G
a
te

s
h

e
a

d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
0

 y
e

a
rs

. 

T
h
e
 s

ix
 b

ig
 i
d
e

a
s
 a

re
: 

•
 

C
it
y
 o

f 
G

a
te

s
h
e

a
d

 

•
 

G
a
te

s
h
e
a

d
 g

o
e
s
 G

lo
b
a

l 

•
 

C
re

a
ti
v
e
 G

a
te

s
h

e
a
d

 

•
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 G
a
te

s
h

e
a
d

 

•
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 H

e
a

lt
h
 G

a
te

s
h
e

a
d

 

•
 

G
a
te

s
h
e
a

d
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 

Page 31



 
8

                                              

 

G
a
te

s
h
e
a

d
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

 

•
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 S

tr
o
n
g

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

•
 

E
m

p
o
w

e
ri

n
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 

•
 

E
m

p
o
w

e
ri

n
g
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e

o
p
le

 a
n
d
 E

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 H

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 

•
 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
c
o

n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 P

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

 

•
 

S
e
rv

in
g
 o

u
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 

•
 

E
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 a

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 G

a
te

s
h
e
a
d

 

 

O
u
r 

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 c
u
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 
c
lo

s
e
ly

 a
lig

n
e
d

 t
o
 

‘s
e
rv

in
g
 o

u
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

’ 
in

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 w

a
y
 a

s
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
ils

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
It
 d

o
e
s
 s

o
 b

y
; 

•
 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 

•
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

1
.2

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 -

  
T

h
e

 M
o

u
n

ts
e

tt
 J

o
in

t 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

M
o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 o

f 
9
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n
d

 7
 G

a
te

s
h
e
a

d
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 t
h

a
t 
c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

•
 

D
e
fi
n
in

g
 
a
n

d
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ti
n
g

 
th

e
 
ro

le
s
 
a
n
d
 
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 
J
o
in

t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
it
h
 c

le
a
r 

d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 f

o
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

e
m

b
e
d
d

in
g

 
c
o
d
e
s
 

o
f 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t,
 

d
e
fi
n

in
g

 
th

e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

o
f 

b
e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

fo
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
ti
n

g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

 n
o
te

s
/m

a
n
u
a

ls
, 

w
h

ic
h
 c

le
a
rl

y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
 h

o
w

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g

in
g
 r

is
k
s
. 

D
u
rh

a
m

 
C

o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d
 
M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 
J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 
C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

h
o

w
 
th

e
y
 

o
p
e
ra

te
, 

h
o

w
 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 
a
re

 
m

a
d
e
 
a
n

d
 
th

e
 
p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
a
re

 
fo

llo
w

e
d
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
s
e
 
a
re

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
, 
tr

a
n
s
p

a
re

n
t 

a
n
d

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

S
T

A
G

E
 1

: 
T

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 i
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fu
tu

re
  

Page 32



 
9

        

A
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i

s
 i

n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

a
id

s
 t

h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

s
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 

p
ro

te
c
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
u

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
s
s
e
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 a
n
d
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 
a

n
d
 
re

g
u
la

to
ry

 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h
is

 
in

v
o

lv
e
s
 
re

g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt

s
 
b

y
 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
u
d

it
, 

to
 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
 c

o
d

e
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 

a
n

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0

3
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
’s

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

d
e
q
u

a
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
t 

th
e
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o
rt

 
a

n
d
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 

a
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 

is
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

jo
in

t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

1
.3

  
 T

h
e

 s
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

s
s

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

T
h
e
 M

o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 S

A
M

P
 i

s
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 h

o
w

 o
u
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

o
u
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
b

lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
n
d
 i

s
 a

ls
o
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 b

y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

a
n
 

m
a
p
 h

o
w

 o
u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 m
a
tc

h
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

. 
 I

t 
is

 a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

s
 w

it
h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 s
ta

g
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 S

A
M

P
 a

re
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
e
ft

 c
o
lu

m
n
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 m

o
re

 

d
e
ta

il 
th

ro
u

g
h
o

u
t 
th

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 
S

A
M

P
 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 
th

e
 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
b

y
 
w

h
ic

h
 
o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 
a
s
s
e
ts

 
a
re

 
a
lig

n
e

d
 
to

 
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
it
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 

o
u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 l

a
n

d
 c

a
n

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 l
e
a

d
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b

le
 c

h
a
n
g

e
. 

 

T
h
e
 S

A
M

P
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
o
l 
w

h
ic

h
, 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
o
s
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
, 

w
ill

 

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 M
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a

b
le

 u
s
 t
o
; 

•
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
 a

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
a

ir
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

•
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 b
u

ild
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 

 T
h
e
 S

A
M

P
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 u
ti
lis

e
d

 a
s
s
e
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 n

e
e
d
. 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 i
t 

is
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a

l 
th

a
t 

w
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e

 

o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d

 
c
a
rr

y
 
o
u
t 

a
 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
o
f 

o
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

. 
A

s
s
e
t 

A
n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 o

u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
; 

o
u
r 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
o

u
r 

lin
k
s
 t
o
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
th

e
 

s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

is
 P

la
n
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 o

u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
1

0
 

y
e

a
rs

 

S
T

A
G

E
 2

: 
T

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

  
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

o
u
r 

‘id
e

a
l’ 

a
s
s
e
ts

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 l
o
o
k
 l
ik

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

fu
tu

re
, 
a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 
a
n
d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

is
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
, 
a
n

d
 a

n
 

a
n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

h
o

w
 o

u
r 

‘id
e
a

ls
’ 
d

if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

s
s
e
t 
b

a
s
e

 

S
T

A
G

E
 3

: 
T

h
e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
  

 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

a
s
s
e
ts

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
1

0
 

y
e

a
rs

, 
e

v
a

lu
a
ti
n
g
 h

o
w

 w
e
 

in
te

n
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
s
e

 
(w

it
h
in

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
),

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

th
a
t 

p
ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

u
p
o
n

 o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 

Page 33



 
1
0

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

u
d
it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

S
A

M
P

 a
n

d
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n

 4
. 

T
h
is

 b
a
s
e

lin
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 

u
s
 t

o
 v

ie
w

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e

l 
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d

. 

 
 2

. 
O

u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l,
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
, 

s
u

p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a

l 
a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 f

u
n
e
ra

l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
n
 g

iv
e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 i
n
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 f

u
n

e
ra

l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir

e
d
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 
is

 
a
 
v
a

lu
e
d
 
o
n

e
 
th

a
t 

h
a
s
 
a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 
a
 
G

o
ld

 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
th

ro
u
g
h

 
th

e
 
IC

C
M

 
(I

n
s
ti
tu

te
 
o
f 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 a

n
d
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t)

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 s

ix
 g

re
e
n
 f

la
g
s
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

s
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt

, 
in

 r
e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i

n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n
t.
 

In
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
, 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 r

a
te

d
 b

y
 I

C
C

M
 a

s
 t

h
e
 t

h
ir
te

e
n

th
 b

e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
a
t 

h
a

v
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n
t 
(f

ro
m

 1
s
t  J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1

3
) 

fo
r 

5
0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
re

m
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
rc

u
ry

 a
b

a
te

d
. 
  

 

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 f

ro
m

 P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h
 E

n
g
la

n
d
, 

tw
o
 t
h

ir
d
s
 o

f 
a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

tw
o
 a

n
d
 1

0
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 a
re

 o
v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

o
r 

o
b
e
s
e
. 

O
b

e
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

a
d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

p
re

m
a
tu

re
 i
ll 

h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
, 

a
n
d
 b

y
 2

0
3
4
, 

7
0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n

t 
o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

o
r 

o
b
e
s
e

. 
S

h
o
u

ld
 t

h
is

 t
re

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

s
 i

n
d
ic

a
te

d
, 

w
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 a

d
a

p
t 

to
 d

e
a

lin
g
 w

it
h

 

la
rg

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

o
re

s
e
e
a
b

le
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
is

 t
re

n
d
 a

n
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 l

o
n
g
 t

e
rm

, 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
d
a
p

ta
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t.
  
  
  

  
  
  

 

S
in

c
e
 

L
o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

w
e
 

h
a

v
e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 

M
o
u

n
ts

e
tt

 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

, 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
: 

    

V
ie

w
 f
ro

m
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt

 
C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 

 

Page 34



 
1
1

  

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

 
 

R
e
p
a

ir
 p

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 p

a
v
e
d

 a
re

a
s
 

£
 

6
,8

3
6
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

R
e
n
e

w
 h

o
t 

w
a
te

r 
h
e

a
te

rs
  

£
 

  
  
 8

,7
6
4

 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
la

g
g
e

d
 a

re
a
 

£
 

4
9
0
  

  

In
te

rn
a

l 
d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n

 
£
 

7
,5

0
0

 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
a
rp

e
ts

 t
o
 c

h
a
p
e

l 
£
  

 
  
 1

3
,1

9
1

 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
u
rt

a
in

s
 i
n
 c

h
a
p
e

l 
£
 

2
,7

4
1

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t
ri

b
u
te

 s
c
re

e
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 
£
 

 1
1
,2

4
2
  

 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
e
a
ti
n

g
 w

it
h
in

 c
h

a
p
e

l 
a
re

a
 

£
 

  
  
  
8
,4

9
3

 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
c
re

m
a
to

r 
h
e
a
rt

h
 r

e
-l
in

e
 

£
 

4
,9

5
0

 

U
p
g
ra

d
e
 a

n
d
 p

a
in

t 
h

a
n
d
 r

a
ils

  
 

  
£
 

1
,2

0
0

 

R
e
n
e

w
 S

o
u
th

 p
e
ri
m

e
te

r 
(m

a
in

 r
o

a
d
) 

fe
n
c
e
  

 
  
  

 
£
 

6
,3

0
0

 

R
o
a
d
 w

id
e
n

in
g

 
 

 
 

£
 

2
4
,9

7
3
  

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
R

e
-l

in
in

g
 o

f 
c
re

m
a
to

rs
 x

1
 

 
 

 
£
 

2
7
,9

5
0

 

R
e
-p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

h
e
a
rt

h
  

 
 

£
 

2
,8

0
0

 

R
e
-p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

g
ra

s
s
 c

u
tt
e
r 

 
 

£
 

1
3
,9

9
5

 

C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 c
a

ta
fa

lq
u
e

 d
o
o

rs
 

£
 

3
,8

8
1

 

In
s
ta

ll 
S

h
o

w
e

r 
to

 c
h
a

n
g
in

g
 r

o
o
m

 
£
 

1
0
,0

0
0

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 o

rd
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

c
re

e
n

. 
£
 

1
,4

8
2

 

R
e

-p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
S

o
u
n

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

it
h

in
 C

h
a
p

e
l 

£
 

8
,3

4
4

 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

e
m

o
ri

a
l 
T

o
w

e
r 

£
 

4
,9

2
0

 

T
a

rm
a

c
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

o
a
d

s
 

£
 

3
8
,4

0
0

 

R
e

-d
e

c
o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
 

£
 

6
,1

7
3

 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
C

C
T

V
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

it
h

in
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 

£
 

1
,5

8
4

 

R
e

-L
in

in
g

 o
f 

h
e
a

rt
h
 

£
 

2
,8

0
0

 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 

£
 

8
0
,2

4
6

 

T
o

ta
l 

£
 

2
9
9
,2

5
5

 

Page 35



 
1
2

 2
.1

 T
h

e
 V

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 l

a
n

d
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
, 

n
e
e

d
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
v
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 G

a
te

s
h
e

a
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 a
n
d
 o

u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 V

is
io

n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i

n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

. 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 A

lt
o
g
e
th

e
r 

B
e
tt
e
r 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

s
tr

a
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

P
la

n
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 d

ri
v
e

n
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 o

u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
.e

. 
th

e
 c

re
m

a
to

r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 M

e
rc

u
ry

 A
b

a
te

m
e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 a

b
le

 

to
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 a

d
u
lt
 o

b
e
s
it
y
. 

T
o
 e

n
a

b
le

 u
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

v
is

io
n
 w

e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t

h
a

t 
a
re

 l
e
g

is
la

ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 a

n
d
 s

y
m

p
a

th
e
ti
c
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 

b
e
re

a
v
e

d
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
ti
n

u
a
l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 a
n
d
 p

e
ri

o
d
ic

 u
p
g
ra

d
e
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n

 s
u
s
ta

in
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 
p
o
rt

fo
lio

. 
 

W
h
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 f

u
tu

re
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 o
u
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 w
e

 m
u
s
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e
; 

          3
. 

T
h

e
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
li

v
e
ry

 o
f 

o
u

r 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

te
n

 y
e
a
rs

  

 V
1

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
, 
re

s
p

e
c
tf

u
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

it
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

e
re

a
v
e
d

. 
  

 V
2

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 a

b
a

te
m

e
n
t 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
ly

 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 L

e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 

w
it
h
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 A

c
t 
1

9
9
0

 a
n

d
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 

D
E

F
R

A
. 

V
3

 
M

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 t
o
 g

iv
e
n
 c

o
m

fo
rt

 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
o
la

ti
o

n
 i
n
 a

 l
a

n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
. 

 

Page 36



 
1
3

A
s
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
a
t 

o
th

e
r 

c
h
a

lle
n
g

e
s
 m

a
y
 l

ie
 a

h
e
a

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 v

is
io

n
 

a
n
d
 a

s
p

ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

w
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n

d
 t

o
 a

n
y
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a

y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

u
p
o
n

 

o
u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 
y
e
a
rs

, 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
is

 b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h

t 
a
b
o

u
t 

b
y
 a

 s
h
if
t 

in
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

p
o
lic

y
, 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 m
e
th

o
d
s
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
o
r 

d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 e

tc
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
, 

th
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u

r 
S

A
M

P
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

to
 a

p
p
e

a
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

h
o
ri

z
o
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 (
u
p
 t

o
 2

 y
e

a
rs

),
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 (
3
 t

o
 5

 y
e

a
rs

) 
a
n
d
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 (
6
 t

o
 1

0
 y

e
a
rs

).
 

In
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 t
h

e
n
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

a
p
 o

u
t 

h
o

w
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 m
e
e
ts

 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 w

e
 m

a
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 

               

S
h

o
rt

-t
e
rm

 c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 (

u
p
 t

o
 2

 y
e
a
rs

) 
 

•
 

T
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 b

ro
u

g
h
t 

a
b
o

u
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 d

e
a
th

 c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

•
 

 T
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 w

it
h

 r
e
g
a
rd

s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
  
 

•
 

T
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 a

n
y
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 b

a
c
k
 l
o
g
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
rs

 2
0
1

7
/1

8
 a

n
d
 

2
0
1
8

/1
9
. 

M
e
d

iu
m

-t
e
rm

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 (

u
p
 t
o
 3

 t
o
 5

 y
e

a
rs

) 
 

•
 

A
s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 f

u
tu

re
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
s
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 n
e
e

d
 t
o
 

re
v
is

it
 a

n
d
 a

d
a
p

t 
o
u
r 

o
w

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 a

lig
n

 w
it
h
 a

n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g

in
g
 l
o
c
a

l 
n

e
e
d
s
. 

•
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 C
e
m

e
te

ry
 P

o
lic

y
 w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 a

n
d
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
. 
 

Page 37



 
1
4

                     

L
o

n
g

-t
e
rm

 c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 (

u
p
 t

o
 6

 t
o
 1

0
 y

e
a
rs

) 
 

•
 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
a

th
 r

a
te

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
8
 n

a
tu

ra
lly

 p
la

c
in

g
 

g
re

a
te

r 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
a

p
t/

im
p
ro

v
e
/r

e
p
la

c
e
 o

u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 a

n
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 a

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
  

•
 

T
h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 l
if
e
s
p
a
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

rs
 i
s
 1

0
 y

e
a
rs

. 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

m
a
d
e
 t
o
 a

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 f

u
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 m

e
rc

u
ry

 

a
b
a
te

m
e
n
t 
e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t.
 A

 r
e

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

5
 t
o
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 3

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t;
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
u
r 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 s

o
u

rc
e
 

c
a
p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n

y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 s

o
u
rc

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
o
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d
. 

•
 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
u

lt
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 l
e
v
e
ls

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
n

g
 t
e
rm

. 
W

e
 

w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
is

 t
re

n
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
a
p

t 
o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 o
u
r 

la
rg

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

. 
  

Page 38



 
1
5

 
            

  

T
H

E
 F

U
T

U
R

E
 N

E
E

D
S

 O
F

 O
U

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

A
L

O
N

G
S

ID
E

 O
U

R
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

  

Page 39



 
1
6

    
  
  
  
  

  
 

     
  
  
  
  

  
  

                                       

 4
. 

A
s
s
e
t 

S
u

p
p

ly
 P

ro
fi

le
 

If
 w

e
 a

re
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 o

u
r 

a
m

b
it
io

n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
, 

re
s
p

e
c
tf

u
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

it
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
e
re

a
v
e
d
, 

w
e

 

m
u
s
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 l
a

n
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 w
h
ic

h
 a

s
s
is

ts
 u

s
. 

T
h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 w

e
 m

u
s
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 

g
ro

u
n

d
s
 t
h
a
t 

g
iv

e
 c

o
m

fo
rt

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
o

la
ti
o
n

. 
 

W
h
ils

t 
m

a
jo

r 
s
te

p
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 t
a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

re
c
e
n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 t
o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
s
te

p
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 t

o
 r

e
a

lis
e
 o

u
r 

v
is

io
n
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
t 

is
 e

s
s
e
n

ti
a

l 
th

a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 u

p
 t

o
 

d
a
te

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

s
s
e
t 
b
a
s
e

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 i
t 
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
. 
 

4
.1

 O
u

r 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 a

s
s

e
ts

  

4
.1

.1
 M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt

 C
re

m
a

to
ri

u
m

  

T
h
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 o

w
n

e
d

 a
n
d

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 a

 J
o

in
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 

G
a
te

s
h
e
a

d
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

T
h
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 n

e
s
tl
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

u
ts

k
ir
ts

 o
f 

D
ip

to
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 (

A
6
9

2
) 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

e
s
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 

w
h
o
le

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 a
n
d
 G

a
te

s
h
e
a

d
. 

It
 i
s
 ‘
T

 s
h
a
p

e
d
’,
 g

iv
in

g
 p

a
n
o
ra

m
ic

 v
ie

w
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e

 m
e
a
d
o

w
la

n
d

 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
ta

n
t 

w
o

o
d

la
n

d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g

 t
h
e

 s
it
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 
a
re

 
tw

o
 
b
u

ild
in

g
s
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
p

u
b

lic
 
h

a
v
e
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to

 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 
c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

. 
T

h
e
 
C

h
a
p
e

l,
 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

w
o
 s

e
ts

 o
f 

la
d
ie

s
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
ts

 w
a
s
h
ro

o
m

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

h
a
p
e

l 
o
f 

R
e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

o
ld

s
 t

h
e
 

B
o
o
k
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
. 
  

 A
re

a
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

c
a
tt
e
ri

n
g

 o
f 

c
re

m
a
te

d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e

 c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
 

a
tm

o
s
p
h
e
re

 o
f 

p
e
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
q
u

ill
it
y
 p

re
v
a
ils

 i
n
 t
h

e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

. 

M
o
re

 r
e
c
e

n
tl
y
 M

o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 w
a
s
 g

ra
n
te

d
 G

re
e
n
 F

la
g
 s

ta
tu

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 y

e
a
r 

ru
n

n
in

g
, 

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

,3
0

0
 c

re
m

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
e
a
c
h

 y
e
a
r.

 

  

Page 40



 
1
7

                    

 
           

4
.1

.2
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 C

h
a

p
e

l 
  
  

  
 

T
h
e
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 
C

h
a
p
e
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 
s
e
a
ti
n

g
 
fo

r 
u
p
 
to

 
1

2
0
 

p
e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h
 
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 
ro

o
m

 
fo

r 
o
v
e
r 

1
0
0
. 

A
d
jo

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
p
e

l 
is

 a
 w

a
it
in

g
 r

o
o
m

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 f

lo
ra

l 
d
is

p
la

y
 a

re
a
 i
s
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

x
it
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
h
a
p
e

l,
 
in

 
w

h
ic

h
 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
fr

ie
n
d
s
 
c
a
n
 
v
ie

w
 
fl
o

ra
l 

tr
ib

u
te

s
 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 
th

e
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

A
ll 

a
re

a
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 a
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 w

h
e
e

lc
h
a

ir
s
. 

F
o
r 

th
e
 
h
a
rd

 
o
f 

h
e
a
ri

n
g
, 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
lo

o
p
s
 a

re
 
in

s
ta

lle
d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 C
h
a

p
e

l.
 
S

p
e
c
ia

ll
y
 a

d
a

p
te

d
 t

o
ile

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

s
u
it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 
w

a
it
in

g
 r

o
o
m

, 
o
p
p
o
s
it
e

 t
h
e
 C

h
a
p

e
l 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e

. 

G
u
id

e
 d

o
g
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 d
o
g
s
 a

re
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
a
ll 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

im
e
s
 a

re
 e

v
e
ry

 4
5

 m
in

u
te

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
lf
 h

o
u
r,

 a
llo

w
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 2

0
 m

in
u
te

s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 g
iv

in
g

 

ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

h
a
p

e
l 
to

 b
e
 t
id

ie
d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

a
c
h
 f

u
n
e
ra

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 s

ty
le

, 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

r 
a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

re
 i
n

 k
e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

. 

4
.1

.3
 C

h
a

p
e

l 
o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c

e
 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
p
e

l 
o
f 

R
e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 i

s
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

h
a
n
d

 s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
n
 a

n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

fo
r 

fl
o
ra

l 
tr

ib
u
te

. 

It
 i

s
 a

 h
e
x
a
g

o
n
a

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 w
h
ic

h
 i

n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 b

o
o

k
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 a

 b
o
o
k
 v

ie
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 

w
h
ic

h
 i

s
 t

o
u
c
h
 s

c
re

e
n
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e
 w

h
o
le

 b
o
o
k
 o

f 
re

m
e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 t

o
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 p

la
c
e
 f

lo
w

e
rs

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 v

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
p
p

lie
d
. 

  
  

 4
.2

 H
o

w
 o

u
r 

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 C
re

m
a

to
ri

a
 a

re
 P

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

  
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 D

a
ta

b
a

s
e
, 

d
e
ta

ils
 w

h
e
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
, 

a
re

 h
e
ld

 o
n
 a

ll 
a
s
s
e
ts

 

u
ti
lis

e
d
 

b
y
 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

M
o
u

n
ts

e
tt

 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

, 
w

it
h
 
re

g
a
rd

s
 
to

 
th

e
ir
 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
, 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
, 
s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 e

n
e
rg

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
  
  

4
.2

.1
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

/o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 r
e

p
a

ir
s
 

A
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

M
o

u
n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
n
 2

0
1
6
 a

n
d
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 

a
re

 
in

 
g
o
o
d
 

c
o

n
d
it
io

n
, 

o
n

ly
 

re
q

u
ir

in
g
 

in
te

rn
a
l 

/ 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o

n
 

in
 

2
0

1
7
/1

8
.T

h
e
re

 
a
re

 

h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 w
h

ic
h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

e
re

a
v
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 a

 

 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 C
h
a
p
e
l 
 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
o
f 
R
e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 

Page 41



 
1
8

                                              

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
a
l 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 s

u
rv

e
y
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
£
2
,6

7
8
,2

5
7
, 

£
2

,5
6
1
,7

5
7

, 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 w

o
rk

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

rg
e
n
t 

/ 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a

l 
a

n
d
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 
1
7

/1
8
 
b
u
d

g
e
t.

 
£
6
,0

0
0
 
is

 
d

e
s
ir
a
b

le
 
w

o
rk

s
 
w

h
ic

h
 
a
re

 
re

q
u

ir
e
d
 
in

 

2
0
1
8

/1
9
; 

£
1

8
,5

0
0
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

9
/2

0
 a

n
d
 £

9
2
,0

0
0
 i
s
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 w
o
rk

s
. 
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 C

o
n
d
it

io
n
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 (
a
s
 a

t 
la

s
t 

s
u

rv
e
y
 i

n
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

6
) 

   
  
  
  
  

  

 

T
O

T
A

L
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 N

E
E

D
 B

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 (

£
) 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

  
1
 

U
R

G
E

N
T

, 
E

S
S

E
N

T
IA

L
 

(1
7
/1

8
 )

 

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 2
 

L
O

N
G

E
R

 T
E

R
M

 
D

E
S

IR
A

B
L

E
 

(1
8
/1

9
) 

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 3
 

L
O

N
G

E
R

 T
E

R
M

 
D

E
S

IR
A

B
L

E
 

(1
9
/2

0
) 

 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 4
 

L
O

N
G

E
R

 T
E

R
M

 
W

O
R

K
S

 
(2

0
/2

1
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
) 

  M
o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 

 

£
2
,5

6
1
,7

5
7

 

 

£
6
,0

0
0

 

 

£
1
8
,5

0
0

 

 

£
9
2
,0

0
0

 

  T
O

T
A

L
 

 
 

  £
2
,6

7
8
,2

5
7

 

 T
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 a
b
o

v
e
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 c
o
s
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

C
re

m
a
to

rs
. 

In
 
s
e
e
k
in

g
 
to

 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 
th

e
 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 
n
e

e
d
s
 
o
f 

o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

, 
w

e
 
ro

u
ti
n
e

ly
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 
a
n

d
 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

R
e
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 B

u
d
g

e
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
. 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 
b
e
e

n
 
m

a
d
e
 
in

 
re

c
e
n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 
to

 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 
th

e
 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 
b
a
c
k
lo

g
 
a
n
d
 
o
th

e
r 

re
p
a

ir
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 s

u
it
a

b
ili

ty
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
  

 4
.2

.2
. 
S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 

U
n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p

la
n

n
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 P
o
rt

fo
lio

 a
s
 t

h
e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

 

 M
o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 o

p
ti
m

a
lly

 u
s
e
d
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 G

a
te

s
h

e
a
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

Page 42



 
1
9

                                              

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

n
e

e
d
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

e
re

a
v
e
d
; 

h
o

w
e
v
e

r 
th

is
 m

a
y
 o

n
ly

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 f

o
r 

M
o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 w

h
e
re

 

d
e
a
th

 r
a
te

s
 d

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

. 
S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 w

ill
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

llo
w

, 
b
e

 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
a
s
 o

n
e

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
ils

 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 

th
e

 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

re
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

c
o
v
e
rs

 
w

h
o
le

 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

 a
re

a
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 o

n
e
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt

. 
  
  

  
 

4
.2

.3
 S

u
it

a
b

il
it

y
  

U
n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
 s

u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p

la
n
n
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 P
o
rt

fo
lio

 a
s
 t
h

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

 

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 

M
o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 h
a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

 a
 b

a
s
ic

 s
u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 a
u
d

it
, 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 

b
e

lo
w

 a
t 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 6

 (
G

a
p
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

) 
 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
b
u

ild
in

g
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
. 

S
u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 u

s
e
rs

/c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 m

e
e
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
u
s
e
. 
A

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

s
k
e
d
 a

ro
u
n

d
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

s
ta

ff
/c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 f
in

d
 t
h

e
 

h
e
a
ti
n
g

/l
ig

h
ti
n

g
/v

e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n
/d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
/s

ta
ff

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
a
e
s
th

e
ti
c
s
 e

tc
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 o

p
in

io
n
 a

s
 

g
o
o
d

/f
a
ir
/p

o
o
r.

 T
h
is

 d
e
ta

il 
h

e
lp

s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f

u
tu

re
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 t
h

is
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
, 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 i
n

 h
is

 o
p
in

io
n
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 e

n
a
b

le
d

 t
h
e

 g
a

p
s
 t

o
 

b
e
 d

ra
w

n
 o

u
t.
 A

lt
h
o
u

g
h
 w

e
 u

s
u
a
lly

 f
in

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

is
 t
h
e

 b
e
s
t 
s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
k
n
o
w

le
d

g
e
, 

th
e
re

 

m
a
y
 b

e
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a

t 
s
ta

ff
/c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a

l 
a

n
d
 o

f 
c
o
u
rs

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

la
n
. 

 4
.2

.4
 A

c
c

e
s

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
c
o
g
n

is
e
d
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 o

r 
im

p
a
ir
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

, 
M

o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 w

a
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
u
d

it
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 

2
0
1
1

. 
A

 f
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 r
e

p
o
rt

 t
o

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
s
e
 w

o
rk

s
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 o

u
r 

in
 h

o
u
s
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 w
o
rk

s
 w

e
re

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
 

  

 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 f
ro

n
t 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

Page 43



 
2
0

                                              

 4
.2

.5
 E

n
e

rg
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
e
n

e
rg

y
 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

re
 c

o
lla

te
d
 o

n
 
a
ll 

a
s
s
e
ts

 u
ti
lis

e
d
 b

y
 B

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
a
ro

u
n
d

 
e
n
e
rg

y
 
c
o

n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 
(e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 
a
n
d

 
g
a
s
) 

a
n
d
 
w

a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
s
e

 

fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 

T
h
e
 l

a
te

s
t 

fi
g
u
re

s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5

/1
6
 
s
h

o
w

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
e

n
e
rg

y
 
c
o

n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 
fo

r 
M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 
w

a
s
 
1
,4

1
3
,5

8
1
 
k
ilo

w
a
tt
-h

o
u
rs

 

(k
W

h
) 

(b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 g
ro

s
s
 i

n
te

rn
a

l 
a
re

a
 o

f 
5
6
0
.3

1
 s

q
m

).
  

In
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 t

e
rm

s
, 

th
is

 c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

£
3
1
,7

1
7
 d

u
ri

n
g
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
. 

  

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
w

a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 i

n
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 i
n

 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
7
5
1
0

 m
3
; 

a
g
a
in

 i
n

 m
o
n
e
ta

ry
 t

e
rm

s
 t

h
is

 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
t 
£
2

,7
3

4
 l
a

s
t 

y
e
a
r.

  

T
h
e
 
ta

b
le

s
 
b
e

lo
w

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
a
 
s
u
m

m
a
ry

 
o
f 

th
e
 
e
n
e
rg

y
 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

M
o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 
d
u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
5

/1
6
. 

In
 
fu

tu
re

 
S

A
M

P
s
 
w

e
 
w

ill
 
s
e

e
k
 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 
th

e
 
tr

e
n

d
s
 
in

 
th

e
s
e
 
fi
g
u
re

s
, 

w
it
h

 
a
 
v
ie

w
 
to

 
m

a
k
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r.

 A
n

y
 s

u
c
h
 t

re
n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 o
n
 u

p
o
n

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

(r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
e
rg

y
) 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
r 

fl
u
c
tu

a
ti
n
g

 c
o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h

 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 a

n
d
 g

a
s
. 

In
 l

ig
h
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h

a
n
g
e

 

a
g
e
n

d
a
s
 w

e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
s
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e

 c
o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
rs

, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 
  
  

 

E
n
e

rg
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

  

 

  
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 

 
T

O
T

A
L

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 
C

O
N

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
 

(k
W

h
) 

 
T

O
T

A
L

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 
C

O
N

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
 

(£
) 

 
T

O
T

A
L

 W
A

T
E

R
 

C
O

N
S

U
M

P
T

IO
N

 
(m

3
) 

 
T

O
T

A
L

 W
A

T
E

R
 

C
O

N
S

U
M

P
T

IO
N

 
P

E
R

 S
Q

M
 

(£
) 

 

 M
o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 

 

1
,4

1
3
,5

8
1

 

 

3
1
,7

1
7

 

 

7
,5

1
0

 

 

4
.8

8
 

 A
s
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

re
m

a
to

r 
is

 u
p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
d
/o

r 
re

p
la

c
e
d
 i
t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 a

ll 
th

e
s
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
. 

 

B
o
o
k
c
a
s
e
 w

it
h
in

 C
h
a
p
e
l 

Page 44



 
2
1

    

 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lla
te

d
 s

h
o

w
s
 u

s
 t
h
a
t:

 

•
 

F
o
r 

o
b

v
io

u
s
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 c
o
n
s
u
m

e
s
 a

 f
a
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

g
a
s
 a

n
d
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 

(b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 k

W
h
 u

s
a
g
e
) 

th
a
n
 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
o

n
s
e
q
u
e

n
t 

k
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 C

O
2
  
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
  

•
 

W
a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
   

E
n

e
rg

y
 P

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

 

P
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 c

o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f

u
lly

 e
x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 t
h
e

 p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
y
 a

llo
w

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 h
e
a
t 

g
e
n

e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
 

h
e

a
t 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 

to
 

h
e

a
t 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 

th
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
o
f 

th
e

 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
o
la

r 
e
n
e
rg

y
 p

a
n
e

ls
 t
o
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 

  5
. 

A
s
s
e
t 

D
e
m

a
n

d
 P

ro
fi

le
 

B
e
in

g
 m

in
d
fu

l 
o
f 

th
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

o
u
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 i

s
 l

ik
e
ly

 t
o
 f

a
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

1
0
 y

e
a
rs

, 
it
 i

s
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

w
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
a
t 

o
u
r 

‘id
e
a

l’ 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 s
h
o
u

ld
 l

o
o
k
 l

ik
e
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

o
u
r 

fu
tu

re
 n

e
e
d
s
. 

In
 t

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

S
A

M
P

 w
e
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
a
k
e
 a

 ‘
b

la
n
k
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
p
a
p

e
r’
 t

o
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 

o
u
r 

re
a

l 
a
s
s
e
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

re
, 

w
it
h

o
u
t 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

. 

T
h
e
s
e
 ‘
id

e
a
ls

’ 
a
re

 h
o

w
e
v
e
r 

te
m

p
e
re

d
 b

y
 a

 r
e
a

lis
ti
c
 a

p
p

re
c
ia

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 d

o
n
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e

 i
n
fi
n

it
e

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
  

5
.1

 O
u

r 
id

e
a
l 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 a

s
s

e
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

In
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 w

h
a
t 

o
u
r 

id
e
a

l 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 s
h
o
u
ld

 l
o

o
k
 l
ik

e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

In
 

d
o
in

g
 
s
o
 
w

e
 
h
a

v
e
 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e
d
 
th

a
t 

o
u
r 

a
s
s
e
ts

 
n
e
e
d
 
to

 
b
e
 
fi
t 

fo
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
fo

r 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 
in

 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 w

h
ils

t 
d
e

liv
e
ri

n
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
. 

 

T
h
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

: 
  

   

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
v
ie

w
 

Page 45



 
2
2

                     

 

C
h
a
p
e
l 

 L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 
 

•
 

A
 w

o
o
d

la
n

d
 o

r 
p

a
rk

la
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 i

n
 a

n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
u

n
d
u

la
ti
n

g
 g

ro
u
n
d

 w
it
h
 g

o
o
d

 n
a

tu
ra

l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
tu

re
 t
re

e
s
 

•
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

 o
f 

th
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 A

c
t 
1
9

0
2
 s

ti
p
u

la
te

s
 t
h
a

t 
n
o

 c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 s
h
a
ll 

b
e
 w

it
h

in
 :

 
o

 
2
0
0
 y

a
rd

s
 o

f 
a

n
y
 d

w
e

lli
n
g

 h
o
u
s
e

 
o

 
1
0
0
 y

a
rd

s
 w

it
h

 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 

o
 

5
0
 y

a
rd

s
 o

f 
a
n

y
 p

u
b

lic
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
 n

o
r 

in
 a

n
y
 c

o
n
s
e
c
ra

te
d

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

a
 b

u
ri
a

l 
g
ro

u
n

d
 

S
iz

e
  

 

•
 

A
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

tw
o
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 (

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 f

iv
e
 a

c
re

s
) 

p
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 1

0
0
0

 
c
re

m
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

a
n
n

u
m

 
 

L
a

y
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 i
m

a
g

e
 

 

•
 

E
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 

a
n

d
 

e
x
it
s
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 
b

e
 

n
o
t 

b
e

 
in

 
c
lo

s
e
 

p
ro

x
im

it
y
 

to
 

in
c
o
m

p
a
ti
b

le
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

E
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
it
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 m

a
in

 t
ru

n
k
 r

o
a
d
s
 

•
 

T
h
e
 
fl
o
w

 
o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
 
to

 
th

e
 
b
u
ild

in
g

 
s
h
o
u

ld
 
b
e

 
s
im

p
le

, 
d
ig

n
if
ie

d
, 

u
n

in
te

rr
u
p
te

d
 
a
n
d

 
s
c
re

e
n
e
d
. 

•
 

S
h
a
re

d
 v

e
h

ic
u
la

r 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
it
 r

o
a

d
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
fi
v
e
 m

e
tr

e
s
 w

id
e

. 

•
 

E
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
it
s
 t

o
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 r
o
o
m

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 f
lo

w
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 s

e
q
u

e
n
c
e
. 

•
 

A
d
e

q
u
a
te

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 

•
 

U
n
d
e
rc

o
v
e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 

•
 

T
h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 h

a
ll 

o
r 

v
e
s
ti
b

u
le

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

p
a
c
io

u
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

to
ile

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

•
 

T
h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 r

o
o
m

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 s
e

a
ti
n
g
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
, 
to

ile
t 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 
to

 a
llo

w
 t
h

e
 a

rr
iv

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
rt

e
g
e

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
o

s
e
 w

a
it
in

g
  
  

•
 

T
h
e
 v

e
s
tr

y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ro
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 

•
 

T
h
e
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
s
h
o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

8
0
/1

0
0
 m

o
u
rn

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 e

n
o
u
g

h
 t
o
 

a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

fu
n
e
ra

l 
o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
d
e
n

o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
s
. 
It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 s
u
c
h
 a

 w
a

y
 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o
m

fo
rt

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a

ll 
m

o
u
rn

e
rs

 a
n
d

 i
s
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 c

re
m

a
to

r 
th

a
t 

is
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

E
n

v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 
o
f 

S
ta

te
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
e
rc

u
ry

 a
b

a
te

m
e
n
t 
  

 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

d
e
q

u
a

te
 a

n
d
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 m

u
s
ic

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 o

rg
a

n
 

•
 

C
C

T
V

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
, 

c
h
a
p

e
l 
a
n
d

 c
re

m
a
to

ry
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

. 

•
 

A
 s

u
it
a
b

ly
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 c

a
ta

fa
lq

u
e

 
 

 

Page 46



 
2
3

                     

 C
o
n
t 

I
  

 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 C

o
m

m
it
ta

l 
H

a
ll 

a
n

d
 v

ie
w

in
g
 r

o
o
m

 

•
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 a
n
d

 s
u
it
a
b

le
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 B
e
a
re

rs
 

R
o
o
m

, 
C

h
a
p
e

l 
o
f 

R
e
s
t,
 C

o
ff

in
 S

to
ra

g
e
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
R

o
o
m

 f
o
r 

C
re

m
a
te

d
 

R
e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
  
 

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

n
e

e
d

s
 

 

•
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

m
e
m

o
ra

ti
v
e
 

fl
o
ra

l 
tr

ib
u
te

s
 

to
 

b
e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
m

e
m

o
ri
a
ls

. 

•
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 
o
f 

c
h
a
m

fe
re

d
 
te

rr
a
-c

o
tt
a
 
b
ri
c
k
 
o
r 

s
to

n
e
 

e
d
g
in

g
 
to

 
th

e
 

w
a
lk

s
 
o
f 

th
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

ix
in

g
 o

f 
m

e
m

o
ri
a
l 
p
la

te
s
. 

•
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 B

o
o
k
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 

•
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 C

o
lu

m
b
a
ri
a

 
  O

th
e
r 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 C

h
a

p
e

l 
o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
, 
h
e
x
a
g

o
n
a

l 
s
h
a
p

e
d
 8

’ 
s
id

e
s
, 
s
it
u
a
te

d
 

to
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h
t 
h

a
n
d
 s

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 i
n
 a

n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

lo
ra

l 
tr

ib
u
te

. 
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 s
o
 t
h

a
t 
it
 c

a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

to
ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 

o
f 

th
e
 B

o
o
k
s
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
, 
in

 s
u
it
a
b

le
 c

a
b

in
e
ts

. 
Id

e
a
lly

 t
h

is
 c

h
a
p
e

l 
s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
. 

V
is

it
o
rs

, 
w

h
o

 w
is

h
 t

o
 v

ie
w

 t
h
e
 B

o
o
k
s
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
, 
o
r 

q
u

ie
tl
y
 m

e
d
ia

te
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
p
e

l,
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 d

is
tu

rb
e
d
 b

y
 m

o
u
rn

e
rs

 a
tt

e
n
d

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 v

ic
e
 v

e
rs

a
. 

 

Page 47



 
2
4

  

     
  
  
  
  

  
  

 6
. 
 S

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 D

e
m

a
n

d
 C

o
m

p
a
ri

s
o

n
 (

G
a
p

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

) 
 T

h
e
 

a
im

 
o
f 

th
e
 

g
a
p
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 
is

 
to

 
re

v
ie

w
 

o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

fu
tu

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
W

e
 
n
e
e
d
 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
th

e
 
ri
g

h
t 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 
th

e
 
ri
g

h
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

th
e

 
ri

g
h
t 

im
a
g
e
 

to
 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 
u
s
e
rs

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 

w
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

B
y
 

e
x
a
m

in
in

g
 

o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 (

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 4

) 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

‘id
e
a
l’ 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 (
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 5

) 
w

e
 c

a
n
 s

e
e
 w

h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

a
n
d
 m

o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
ta

il,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

 t
u
rn

 a
llo

w
 u

s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 o

u
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 
n
e

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
rs

. 

 6
.1

 H
o

w
 o

u
r 

‘i
d

e
a

l’
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 d

if
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
‘e

x
is

ti
n

g
’ 
a

s
s
e

t 
b

a
s

e
 

 In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 o

u
r 

o
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 n
e

e
d
 a

n
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 o
u
r 

c
h

a
n
g

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 n
e

e
d
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
S

in
c
e
 L

G
R

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

£
2
9
9
,2

5
5
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d
is

a
b

le
d
 t

o
ile

ts
, 

fi
re

 a
la

rm
 a

n
d
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 

c
h
a
p
e

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 
th

is
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

h
o

w
e
v
e

r,
 

th
e
re

 
a
re

 
g
a
p
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

o
u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
s
s
e
t 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

‘id
e

a
ls

’ 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 

 6
.1

.1
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 M
e

rc
u

ry
 A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 

 T
h
e
 
re

m
a
in

in
g
 
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 
lif

e
s
p
a
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 
C

re
m

a
to

rs
 
a
t 

M
o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 
is

 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 
1

0
 

y
e

a
rs

; 
h
o

w
e
v
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e

n
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 u

n
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
. 

In
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 L

G
R

, 

M
o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

a
n
n
u

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
k
 f

a
c
to

re
d
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
e

n
u
e
 b

u
d
g
e

t.
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 L

G
R

, 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 i

ts
 

re
s
e
rv

e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

p
p
ro

v
in

g
 a

ll 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
rp

lu
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d
 (

o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t)

 t
o
 b

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

C
re

m
a
to

r 
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
e
rv

e
. 

 In
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

fu
n
d

in
g

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

fu
tu

re
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
re

m
a
to

rs
 

fr
o
m

 
2
0
1
7
-2

0
2
5
 

th
e

 

Page 48



 
2
5

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

u
d

g
e
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
d
 p

o
lic

y
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
ll 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
u
rp

lu
s
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 i
n
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 

It
 i

s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t,

 b
a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
o

d
a

y
’s

 p
ri
c
e
s
, 

th
e

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 c

re
m

a
to

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 

(e
x
c
 M

e
rc

u
ry

 A
b
a
te

m
e
n
t 
T

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
) 

is
 £

5
0

0
k
 p

e
r 

c
re

m
a
to

r.
 

 In
 2

0
0

4
 D

E
F

R
A

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

re
m

a
ti
o
n
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

y
 a

d
v
is

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

5
0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
re

m
a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
m

e
rc

u
ry

 
a

b
a
te

d
 
b

y
 
th

e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f 

2
0
1
2
. 

S
h
o

u
ld

 
th

is
 
n
o
t 

b
e
 
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b

le
, 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 
w

o
u

ld
 
b

e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d
 
w

h
e
re

b
y
 
a
ll 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 
in

 
e

x
c
e
s
s
 
o
f 

1
9
7
0
 
c
re

m
a
ti
o
n
s
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
2

0
0
3
 
w

o
u
ld

 
b
e

 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
s
ta

ll 
a

b
a
te

m
e
n
t 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 F

e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

re
m

a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 f

e
lt
 t
h

a
t 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
s
t 
o
f 

M
e
rc

u
ry

 A
b
a
te

m
e
n
t 
b
e

in
g
 m

e
t 
b

y
  

th
e
 
b

u
s
ie

s
t 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 
th

e
 
c
o
s
t 

s
h
o
u

ld
 
b
e
 
s
h

a
re

d
 
a
ro

u
n

d
 
th

e
 
in

d
u
s
tr

y
 
a

n
d
 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e

d
 
th

e
 
C

A
M

E
O

 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 (

a
 b

u
rd

e
n
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 w

it
h
 a

b
a

te
m

e
n
t 
e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 r
e
c
e

iv
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
o

u
t,
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
re

m
a
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
).

 

 In
 2

0
0
3

 M
o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 l
e
s
s
 c

re
m

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
n

 t
h
e

 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 

2
0
0
3

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n

 (
1
,3

2
6
) 

a
n
d
 i

s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

c
o
m

p
e

lle
d
 t

o
 i

n
s
ta

ll 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 

in
 l

in
e
 w

it
h

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
. 

In
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 M
o

u
n
ts

e
tt

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 s
h
o
u
ld

 j
o
in

 

th
e
 C

A
M

E
O

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 i
n
s
ta

ll 
a
b

a
te

m
e
n
t 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t.
  
 

 W
h
ils

t 
it
 

is
 

e
n
v
is

a
g

e
d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 

c
re

m
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 

to
 

b
e
 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 

th
e

 

le
g

is
la

ti
v
e
 
th

re
s
h
o

ld
, 

th
e
re

 
a
re

 
s
tr

o
n

g
 
e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 
w

h
y
, 

w
h

e
n
 
re

p
la

c
in

g
 
c
re

m
a
to

rs
 
in

 
th

e
 

fu
tu

re
, 
th

e
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 M

e
rc

u
ry

 A
b
a
te

m
e
n
t 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t.
  

 O
u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

r 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 f

u
n
d
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
6
 w

a
s
 £

9
2
7
,5

4
2
 (

2
0

1
5
/1

6
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

),
 

w
it
h
 b

u
d

g
e
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 o

f 
£
2
4

4
,6

5
3
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 t

h
u
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i

n
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

y
e

a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

£
1
,1

7
2
,1

9
5

. 

     
  

Page 49



 
2
6

6
.1

.2
 O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

 M
o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

lo
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 i
d
e
a

l 
a

tm
o
s
p
h
e
re

  

fo
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
rs

. 
W

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

b
o

th
 a

re
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

a
s
 o

u
r 

‘id
e
a

ls
’.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 h
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n

 b
e

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 R
e
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
7
/1

8
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
£
2
,6

7
8

,2
5

7
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

re
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 o

th
e
r 

w
o
rk

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o

n
g

 

te
rm

 c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 n
e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

o
rk

s
 i

d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e

 

s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

s
u
rv

e
y
 t

y
p
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
. 

A
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 g
a
p
 i

s
 

th
e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 p

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

n
d
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

T
h
e
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

a
t 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 8

.2
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 w

o
rk

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
m

it
. 
  

 R
e
d

e
c
o

ra
ti

o
n

 

 T
h
e
 M

o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

o
n
d

it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
s
 r

e
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 i
n
d

ic
a
ti
v
e
 c

o
s
ts

 (
£

1
2
,5

0
0
) 

w
it
h

 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

w
o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
1

7
/1

8
. 

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 

c
y
c
le

 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 i

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
is

 w
o
rk

. 
 I

t 
is

 h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

re
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o

n
 

w
o
rk

s
 m

a
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e
 a

lig
n

e
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
. 
 

  
  
  

G
A

P
 1

 

 S
e
c
u
re

 a
 
b
u
d

g
e
t,
 
a
n
d
 
d
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

 2
 
y
e

a
r 

s
c
h
e
d
u

le
 f

o
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 

a
n
d

 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
  

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
1
7

 

  

Page 50



 
2
7

 6
.1

.3
 S

u
it

a
b

il
it

y
 

 A
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 4

 S
u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 S
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 

P
o
rt

fo
lio

 a
s
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
u
n
fo

rt
u
n

a
te

ly
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

 d
o
 s

o
. 

 

T
h
e
 
M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 
C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 
o
u
t 

a
 
s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 

a
u
d
it
 

w
h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 
s
h
o

w
n

 

g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 t

h
e
 s

u
it
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
. 

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 m
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 i
n

 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

la
y
o
u
ts

. 
T

h
e
 l

o
c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 C

h
a

p
e

l 
o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 

im
a
g
e
 l

o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

b
e
in

g
 s

it
u

a
te

d
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 c
h
a
p
e

l 
in

 a
 s

e
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

n
d
 p

e
a
c
e
fu

l 

a
re

a
 s

e
tt

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h
t 
to

n
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
. 

 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b

ili
ty

 a
re

:-
  

C
a
rp

e
ts

 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 
c
a
rp

e
t 

w
h

e
n
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 
th

e
 
o
ff

ic
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
it
 
a
re

a
 
is

 
s
h
o
w

in
g
 
s
ig

n
s
 
o
f 

w
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 
re

q
u

ir
e
s
 
re

-

p
la

c
in

g
. 

 G
A

P
 2

 

  C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
e
rt

a
in

 c
a
rp

e
ts

 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

S
e
p
t 

2
0

1
7

 

 M
e

m
o
ri

a
l 

P
la

q
u

e
s
 

T
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

a
le

 o
f 

m
e
m

o
ri
a
l 
p
la

q
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
p
la

y
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

u
te

r 
w

a
lls

 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
p
e
l 

o
f 

re
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 p

ro
v
e
d
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
m

a
lle

r 
m

e
m

o
ri
a
l 
to

w
e
rs

 t
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 

 

 G
A

P
 3

 

  C
a
rr

y
 
o
u
t 

th
e
 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

 
o
f 

a
 
s
m

a
lle

r 
m

e
m

o
ri
a
l 

to
w

e
r 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

S
e
p
t 

2
0

1
7

 

 

 

Page 51



 
2
8

 L
e

c
te

rn
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

le
c
te

rn
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

h
o

ld
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 m

in
is

te
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

 u
s
e
 f

o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 r

e
p
la

c
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

 h
e

ig
h
t 

a
d
ju

s
ta

b
le

 l
e
c
te

rn
. 

 G
A

P
 4

 

  C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

le
c
te

rn
. 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

S
e
p
t 

2
0

1
7

 

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 s
h
ru

b
 b

e
d
s
 

T
h
e
 
re

m
a
in

in
g
 
s
h
ru

b
s
 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 
c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 
h
a
v
e

 
b
e

e
n
 
in

 
s
it
u
 
fo

r 
a
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
e
a
rs

 
a

n
d
 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

re
m

o
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 s
o

il 
a
d
d

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

n
ti
n
g
. 

 G
A

P
 5

 

  C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 s

h
ru

b
 b

e
d
s
. 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

7
 

 In
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
a
ir

 c
o

n
d
it

io
n
in

g
 u

n
it

s
 

 T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
h
a
p
e
l 
d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 a
ir
 t

o
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
s
ta

ll 
s
o
m

e
 a

ir
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 u

n
it
s
. 
  

 

 G
A

P
 6

 

 S
o
u
rc

e
 
b

u
d
g

e
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 
a

n
d
 
c
a
rr

y
 
o

u
t 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 
o

f 
a

ir
 
c
o

n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 

u
n

it
s
. 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

2
0
1
7

/1
8

 

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

 

Page 52



 
2
9

 G
A

P
 7

 

 In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

n
e

w
 

C
re

m
a
to

rs
 

a
n
d
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 

to
 

M
o

u
n

ts
e
tt

 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 
th

a
t 

c
o
m

p
ly

 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e

 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
ti
n
g
 (

E
n
g

la
n
d
 a

n
d
 W

a
le

s
) 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0

7
 –

 

T
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 
(E

n
g
la

n
d
) 

(C
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 

M
e
rc

u
ry

 

E
m

is
s
io

n
s
) 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o

n
 2

0
0
8

 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

2
0
1
7

/1
8

 

 R
e
d

e
c

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

 T
h
e
 M

o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

o
n
d

it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
s
 r

e
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 i
n
d

ic
a
ti
v
e
 c

o
s
ts

 (
£

1
2
,5

0
0
) 

w
it
h

 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

w
o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
1

9
/2

0
. 

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 

c
y
c
le

 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 i

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
is

 w
o
rk

. 
 I

t 
is

 h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

re
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o

n
 

w
o
rk

s
 m

a
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e
 a

lig
n

e
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
. 
 

  
  
  

G
A

P
 8

 

 S
e
c
u
re

 a
 
b
u
d

g
e
t,
 
a
n
d
 
d
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

 2
 
y
e

a
r 

s
c
h
e
d
u

le
 f

o
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 

a
n
d

 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
  

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
1
9

 

 H
e

a
rt

h
 r

e
p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

 T
h
e
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 n

e
w

 h
e
a
rt

h
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
. 

  

 

 G
A

P
 9

 

 S
o
u
rc

e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

R
e

-l
in

in
g

 o
f 

h
e
a

rt
h

. 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

2
0
2
0

 

 R
e
 l

in
in

g
 o

f 
c
re

m
a
to

rs
 

 T
h
e
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 n

e
w

 h
e
a
rt

h
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
. 

  

 

Page 53



 
3
0

 G
A

P
 1

0
 

 S
o
u
rc

e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

R
e

-l
in

in
g

 o
f 

h
e
a

rt
h

. 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

2
0
2
2

 

 6
.1

.4
 A

c
c

e
s

s
ib

il
it

y
 

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 
c
o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 
w

ill
 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
a
n
 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 
th

e
 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 
o
f 

w
h

ic
h
, 

is
 
to

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 

w
o
rk

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 A

u
d
it
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
, 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i

n
 

S
A

M
P

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o
rk

s
 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.

 

W
e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
o
u
r 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t.
  

 6
.1

.5
 E

n
e

rg
y
 

A
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 4

.2
.5

 o
u
r 

e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
s
t 

a
re

 h
ig

h
, 

fo
r 

o
b
v
io

u
s
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
, 

w
h

e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

. 
B

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 
d
a
ta

 
w

it
h

 
o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
s
im

ila
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 
ty

p
e
s
 
is

 
a

v
a

ila
b
le

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
rt

e
re

d
 I

n
s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
c
y
 (

C
IP

F
A

) 
a
t 

a
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

£
2
0
0

 a
n
d
 w

o
u

ld
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 l
ik

e
 f

o
r 

lik
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

e
n

e
rg

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 
N

o
tw

it
h
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 
th

a
t 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
a
re

 
n
o

t 
p
re

s
e
n

tl
y
 
a

v
a
ila

b
le

; 
w

e
 
re

m
a
in

 
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 
to

 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 o

u
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

T
h
e
 i

n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
o
la

r 
p

h
o
to

v
o

lt
a

ic
s
 (

P
V

) 
p
a

n
e

ls
 o

n
 o

u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

re
-u

s
in

g
 

w
a
s
te

 h
e
a
t 

g
e
n

e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 h

e
a
t 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 b

y
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
u
ld

 p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 h

e
a
t 

o
u
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
, 

s
a
v
e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 o

u
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
x
p

lo
ra

ti
o
n

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 c

o
s
ts

 w
ill

 h
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 n
e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
. 

 

 G
A

P
 1

1
 

 D
e
te

rm
in

e
 
th

e
 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t 

o
f 

in
s
ta

lli
n
g
 
a
 
h

e
a
t 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 o

f 
in

s
ta

lli
n
g
 S

o
la

r 
P

V
 P

a
n
e

ls
  

 

 T
a
rg

e
t:

 

 2
0
1

7
-2

0
2

5
 

  

Page 54



 
3
1

7
. 

C
lo

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

a
p

s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 
 

 
 

  

A
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 o

u
r 

G
a
p
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
q
u

ir
e
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 o

u
r 

‘id
e

a
l’ 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 v

is
io

n
. 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 S

A
M

P
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t

o
o
l 
in

 m
a
p
p
in

g
 o

u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
, 

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

fu
tu

re
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
, 

w
h
ils

t 
a
ls

o
 r

e
-v

is
it
in

g
 o

u
r 

s
ta

te
d
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 (

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 8

) 
  
  

 

 
  
  
  

 

7
.1

 H
o

w
 w

e
 i

n
te

n
d

 t
o

 c
lo

s
e

 t
h

e
 ‘

g
a

p
’ 
 

 
 

W
e
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 u
s
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 t
o
o
l 

to
 t

a
c
k
le

 o
u
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

re
la

te
d
 i

s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 s

te
e
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 l

in
e
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

p
ri
o
ri

ti
e

s
. 

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d

 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
h

ic
h
 w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 u

s
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘

g
a
p
s
’ 

a
re

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 8

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 

p
la

tf
o
rm

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 e
n

a
b

le
 u

s
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h

 o
u
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 ‘
id

e
a
ls

’ 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

 7
.1

.1
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 F
u

n
d

  
  

In
 
2
0
0

3
/0

4
 
(p

re
 
L
o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

R
e
-o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
) 

a
 
ri
n
g
 
fe

n
c
e
d
 
re

s
e
rv

e
 
fu

n
d
, 

m
e
t 

fr
o
m

 
s
u
rp

lu
s
e
s
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

, 
w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

c
a
p
it
a

l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e

m
e
n
ts

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 
c
re

m
a
to

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 
a
n

y
 
ri
s
k
 
/ 

A
s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 m

ig
h
t 

a
ri
s
e
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

a
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

  

T
h
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
: 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 @

 1
s
t  

A
p
ri

l 
2

0
1
6
 £

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 £

 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 £

 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 @

 3
1

s
t  

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7
 £

 

C
re

m
a
to

r 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(9
2
7
,5

4
2
) 

(2
6
5
,9

8
3
) 

2
1
,3

3
0

 
(1

,1
7
2
,1

9
5
) 

R
e
p
a

ir
s
 

(7
3
,6

1
6
) 

(1
5
,0

0
0
) 

6
4
,0

9
4

 
(2

4
,5

2
2
) 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
(2

4
2
,0

7
0
) 

(2
1
,3

3
0
) 

0
 

(2
6
3
,4

0
0
) 

T
o
ta

l 
(1

,2
4
3
,2

2
8
) 

(3
0
2
,3

1
3
) 

8
5
,4

2
4

 
(1

,4
6
0
,1

1
7
) 

   

Page 55



 
3
2

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
ts

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o
r 

R
e
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
: 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
re

p
a

ir
s
 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 

E
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

R
e
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d

 

S
e
rv

ic
in

g
 

T
o

ta
l 
R

&
M

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

£
7
,0

0
0

 
£
1
4
,5

0
0

 
£
2
1
,5

0
0

 

 7
.2

 H
o

w
 w

e
 i

n
te

n
d

 t
o

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e

 ‘
g

a
p

s
’ 
in

 o
u

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

  

T
h
e
 M

o
u

n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ts

 Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 a

ll 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o

 M
o

u
n
ts

e
tt

 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 B

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
r’

s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
m

it
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 2

, 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 t

o
 r

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 

g
a
p
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

, 
d
ir
e
c
t 

fu
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

S
A

M
P

. 
 

  
  

 

 7
.3

 H
o

w
 w

e
 i

n
te

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 f
u

tu
re

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
it

ig
a

te
 r

is
k
 

M
o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
rs

 o
f 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
y
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a

lly
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

 

to
 
k
e
e
p
 
u
p
 
to

 
d
a
te

 
w

it
h
 
2

1
s
t  

c
e
n
tu

ry
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
d
e

liv
e
ry

 
n
e

e
d
s
, 

w
it
h
 
ro

u
ti
n

e
 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

a
ls

o
 
re

q
u
ir
e

d
 
in

 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

re
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
p

re
m

is
e
s
 f
ro

m
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
o

n
. 

In
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 

m
a
d
e
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
d

o
p
te

d
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 f

u
ll
y
, 

w
h
ils

t 
a

ls
o

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 w
h
e

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
. 

7
.3

.1
 O

p
ti

o
n

s
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 a
n

d
 C

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
D

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

  

A
s
 a

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
e
 a

lw
a

y
s
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

fu
ll 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 a
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 a

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 

m
u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

lin
e
d

 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
w

h
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 
B

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d

 

c
o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 
in

 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t.
 
A

d
v
ic

e
 
a

n
d
 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
is

 
a
ls

o
 
ta

k
e
n
 
fr

o
m

 
o
th

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
a
n

y
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

is
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a

t 

m
e
e
t 
o
u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
: 

Page 56



 
3
3

•
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
ll 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
v
e
n

u
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 

•
 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 

a
n
d
, 

•
 

P
re

p
a
re

 f
u
lly

 c
o
s
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

, 
w

h
ils

t 
a

ls
o
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 r

is
k
s
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
W

o
rk

s
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d

 b
y
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 l
o

a
n
. 

In
 f

u
tu

re
 m

o
n
th

s
/y

e
a
rs

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 f

u
ll 

a
n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

‘g
a

p
s
’ 

th
a
t 

h
a

v
e

 
b
e

e
n
 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 
(a

s
 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 
S

e
c
ti
o
n

 
6
) 

a
n
d
 
h
o

w
 
w

e
 
w

ill
 
d

e
liv

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
m

o
n
e

y
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 

A
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

o
n
 e

a
c
h
 g

a
p
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h
is

 d
e
ta

ils
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e

l 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

ta
k
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 m

in
im

is
e
 o

u
r 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 g

a
p
s
.  

 
 

 H
ig

h
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
p
ti

o
n
s
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 ‘
g

a
p
s
’ 
in

 o
u
r 

p
o
rt

fo
li

o
 

 

 
G

A
P

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 
O

P
T

IO
N

 1
 

O
P

T
IO

N
 2

 

G
A

P
 1

 
S

e
c
u
re

 a
 b

u
d
g
e
t,
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 2
 y

e
a
r 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
re

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
  

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

G
A

P
 2

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
rp

e
ts

 i
n
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

re
a
  
 

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

G
A

P
 3

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

e
m

o
ri
a
l 
to

w
e
rs

. 
  

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
  

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

G
A

P
 4

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
le

c
te

rn
 w

it
h
in

 c
h
a
p
e
l.
 

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

G
A

P
 5

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 t

o
 s

h
ru

b
 b

e
d
s
. 

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

G
A

P
 6

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ir
-c

o
n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 t
o
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
a
re

a
. 
  

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
  

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
  

G
A

P
 7

 
In

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 h

o
u
s
e
 n

e
w

 c
re

m
a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

la
n
t 

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
  

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
  

G
A

P
 8

 
S

e
c
u
re

 a
 b

u
d
g
e
t,
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 2
 y

e
a
r 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
re

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
  

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
  

G
A

P
 9

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 r

e
lin

in
g
 o

f 
h
e
a
rt

h
 

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
  

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
  

G
A

P
 1

0
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 r

e
lin

in
g
 o

f 
c
re

m
a
to

rs
 

D
o
 N

o
th

in
g
  

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
  

G
A

P
 1

1
 

D
e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

in
s
ta

lli
n
g
 a

 h
e
a
t 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 o

f 
in

s
ta

lli
n
g
 S

o
la

r 
P

V
 P

a
n
e
ls

 
D

o
 N

o
th

in
g
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 

  
  

 

 

Page 57



 
3
4

  

7
.3

.2
 R

is
k

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e
n

ts
  

  

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
d
o
p
te

d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

It
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

is
k
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 w
it
h

 

e
a
c
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

to
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h

 B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
is

 S
A

M
P

 w
e
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 h

o
p
e

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 

ri
s
k
 t

o
 o

u
r 

a
s
s
e
ts

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
o
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

, 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 ‘

g
a
p
s
’ 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 i

d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
In

 t
u
rn

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 h
e
lp

 u
s
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e

th
e
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
s
, 

w
h

ic
h
 
c
a
n
n

o
t 

b
e

 
p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 
m

e
t 

fr
o
m

 
o
u
r 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 
F

u
n
d
, 

a
re

 
re

q
u
ir

e
d
 
a
n

d
 
a

v
o

id
 
lo

n
g
e
r-

te
rm

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
. 

T
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 S

A
M

P
s
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

e
d
 b

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 e

a
c
h

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 g
a
p
 i
n

 t
u
rn

 a
n

d
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
. 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(f
o
r’

 g
a

p
s
’ 
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
) 

 
G

A
P

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 
R
I
S
K
 I

D
E
N

T
I
F
I
E
D

 
M

I
T
I
G

A
T
I
O

N
 

G
A

P
 1

 
S

e
c
u
re

 
a
 
b
u
d
g
e
t,

 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 
a
 
2
 
y
e
a
r 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
n
d
 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

re
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 

1
. 

T
h
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 f

u
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 

o
u
t 

re
p
a
ir
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

 c
a
te

g
o
ry

 a
t 

G
a
p
 2

 a
b
o
v
e
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
s
u
ff

ic
e
  

2
. 

 R
e
-d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

 2
 y

e
a
r 

c
y
c
le

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

a
lig

n
 

w
it
h
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 p

la
n
 (

G
a
p
 2

) 
  

1
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 
s
u
rp

lu
s
 t

h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

 R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
. 
  
  

 

2
  

D
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 r
e
-d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 
a
n
d
 
a
lig

n
 
th

is
 
w

it
h
 
u
rg

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
te

g
o
ry

 w
o
rk

s
  
 

G
A

P
 2

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
rp

e
ts

 i
n
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

re
a
. 
  

1
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 £

1
0
,0

0
0
 

2
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 i
te

m
s
 

 

1
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

re
p
a
ir
. 

2
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 

G
A

P
 3

 
S

o
u
rc

e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 i

n
s
ta

ll 
a
 s

m
a
lle

r 
m

e
m

o
ri
a
l 

to
w

e
rs

 i
n
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 

1
. 

M
e
m

o
ri
a
l 

p
la

q
u
e
 s

a
le

s
 a

re
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
. 

2
.R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

  
 

 

1
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
. 

2
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 

G
A

P
 4

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
le

c
te

rn
 i
n
 c

h
a
p
e
l 

1
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

le
c
te

rn
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

d
ju

s
t 
h
e
ig

h
t.
 

1
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

Page 58



 
3
5

 
G

A
P

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 
R
I
S
K
 I

D
E
N

T
I
F
I
E
D

 
M

I
T
I
G

A
T
I
O

N
 

2
.R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

  
 

  

re
p
a
ir
. 

2
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 

G
A

P
 5

 
S

o
u
rc

e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
to

 r
e
p
la

c
e
 s

h
ru

b
 b

e
d
s
. 

1
. 

T
h
e
 s

h
ru

b
 b

e
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 u

p
g
ra

d
in

g
. 

2
.R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

  
 

 

1
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t.
 

2
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 

G
A

P
 6

 
S

o
u
rc

e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
to

 i
n
s
ta

ll 
a
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 i
n
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
a
re

a
. 

1
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
m

a
y
 
n
o
t 

b
e
 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
c
a
rr

y
 
o
u
t 

w
o
rk

. 
  
 

  

1
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
. 

2
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 

G
A

P
 7

 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

n
e

w
 C

re
m

a
to

rs
 t

o
 M

o
u
n
ts

e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 t
h
a
t 

c
o
m

p
ly

 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
ti
n
g
 

(E
n
g
la

n
d
 

a
n
d
 

W
a
le

s
) 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

2
0
0
7
 

–
 

T
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

(E
n
g
la

n
d
) 

(C
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 

M
e
rc

u
ry

 E
m

is
s
io

n
s
) 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

0
0
8
 

1
. 

 C
re

m
a
to

r 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

 b
e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 2
0
1
7
-2

0
2
5

 

2
. 

 U
s
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 d

e
c
lin

e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
  
  

3
. 

 M
a
y
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
  
  

4
. 

F
a
ilu

re
 b

e
fo

re
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

. 

 

1
 &

 2
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 f

o
r 

c
re

m
a
to

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 
m

e
rc

u
ry

 
a
b
a
te

m
e
n
t 

is
 
o
n
 
ta

rg
e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
2
0
. 

B
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 

fo
r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 

it
 

is
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

fu
n
d
 

w
ill

 
h
a
v
e
 

a
 

5
0
%

 

s
u
rp

lu
s
  
  
 

3
. 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

le
a
r 

lin
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

a
ll 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 

p
a
rt

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

4
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
. 

G
A

P
 8

 
S

e
c
u
re

 
a
 
b
u
d
g
e
t,

 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 
a
 
2
 
y
e
a
r 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
n
d
 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

re
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 

1
. 

T
h
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 f

u
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

a
rr

y
 

o
u
t 

re
p
a
ir
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

 c
a
te

g
o
ry

 a
t 

G
a
p
 2

 a
b
o
v
e
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
s
u
ff

ic
e
  

2
. 

 R
e
-d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

 2
 y

e
a
r 

c
y
c
le

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

a
lig

n
 

w
it
h
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 p

la
n
 (

G
a
p
 2

) 
  

1
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 
s
u
rp

lu
s
 t

h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

 R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
. 
  
  

 

2
  

D
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 r
e
-d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 
a
n
d
 
a
lig

n
 
th

is
 
w

it
h
 
u
rg

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
te

g
o
ry

 w
o
rk

s
  
 

G
A

P
 9

 
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

R
e
-l
in

in
g
 o

f 
h
e
a
rt

h
s
 

1
. 

C
re

m
a
to

rs
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 n

e
w

 h
e
a
rt

h
s
. 

2
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
m

a
y
 
n
o
t 

b
e
 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
c
a
rr

y
 
o
u
t 

th
e
s
e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

1
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

re
-

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 

2
.E

x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 

G
A

P
 1

0
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

R
e
-l
in

in
g
 o

f 
c
re

m
a
to

rs
  

1
. 

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 r

e
 l
in

in
g
. 

2
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
m

a
y
 
n
o
t 

b
e
 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
c
a
rr

y
 
o
u
t 

1
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

re
-

lin
e
 w

o
rk

 

Page 59



 
3
6

 
G

A
P

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 
R
I
S
K
 I

D
E
N

T
I
F
I
E
D

 
M

I
T
I
G

A
T
I
O

N
 

th
e
s
e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

2
.E

x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 

G
A

P
 1

1
 

D
e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

in
s
ta

lli
n
g
 a

 h
e
a
t 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 o

f 

in
s
ta

lli
n
g
 S

o
la

r 
P

V
 P

a
n
e
ls

 

 
1
. 

E
n
e
rg

y
 

c
o
s
ts

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
2
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

w
ill

 
n
o
t 

b
e
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
. 

 
2
. 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 

w
ill

 p
ro

h
ib

it
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

 

1
. 

C
a
rr

y
 
o
u
t 

a
 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y
 
to

 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

c
o
s
ts

 
a
n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
t.
 

2
. 

E
x
p
lo

re
 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p

la
c
e
d
 
in

 
th

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
. 

 

Page 60



 
3
7

 

8
. 

O
u

r 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 
 

 
In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

, 
m

e
d
iu

m
 a

n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 g

a
p
s
, 

th
is

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 

 
o
f 

th
e
 S

A
M

P
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 o

u
r 

k
e

y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 g

a
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

t 
A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 A

 a
n

d
 

 
s
h
o

w
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
s
e
 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 a
lig

n
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 g

a
p
s
. 

T
h
e
 
A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 a

ls
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
s
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
lig

n
 

 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

V
is

io
n
 a

s
 s

e
t-

o
u
t 

in
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

. 
T

h
e

s
e
 w

ill
  

b
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 u
p

d
a
te

s
 a

s
 t
h

e
 S

A
M

P
 m

o
v
e
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
  
  

  

  
 8

.1
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 R
e

li
n

in
g

 

 
 

 
 In

 t
h
e
 l

o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 (
1
0
 y

e
a
rs

) 
o
u
r 

p
ri
o
ri

ty
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 o

u
r 

th
a
t 

o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

rs
 a

re
 r

e
p
la

c
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o
l 

m
e
rc

u
ry

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
u
m

 –
 T

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 (

E
n
g
la

n
d
) 

(C
re

m
a
to

ri
a
 M

e
rc

u
ry

 E
m

is
s
io

n
s
) 

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

 2
0
0
8

, 
a
d

v
is

in
g
 

th
a
t 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
5

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
re

m
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 m
e
rc

u
ry

 a
b
a
te

d
 b

y
 1

s
t  J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
3
 a

n
d
 1

0
0
%

 b
y
 2

0
2

0
. 

 
 

 
N

o
tw

it
h
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 
th

e
 
le

g
is

la
ti
v
e
 
im

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 
a
b
o

v
e
, 

th
e
re

 
a
ls

o
 
e
x
is

ts
 
th

e
 
is

s
u
e
 
o
f 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a

l 
c
o
s
ts

 
a
n
d
 
C

O
2
 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

(S
e
c
ti
o

n
 4

 a
b
o

v
e
) 

a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

ri
s
in

g
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
 c

o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 l

if
e
s
p
a
n
 i

n
 2

0
1

5
 i

s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

0
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n

d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 c

re
m

a
to

rs
 g

e
t 

o
ld

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
a

ir
 w

ill
 r

is
e
, 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 o

b
s
o

le
te

. 
A

 3
 y

e
a
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 i

n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 P

h
o
e
n

ix
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
2
0
1

3
-2

0
1
6
 i

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 o
p
ti
m

u
m

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

m
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
. 

  
In

 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
o
 m

e
d
iu

m
 a

n
d
 l

o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 w
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 a
n
d
 r

e
lin

e
 o

u
r 

c
re

m
a

to
rs

. 
C

re
m

a
to

r 

re
lin

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t:

 

 

•
 

N
o
1
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
  
  
  

  
2
0

2
2
, 

2
0
2
7
, 

 a
ft

e
r 

1
5
 y

e
a
rs

 

•
 

N
o
2
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
  
  
  

  
2
0

2
2
, 

2
0
2
7
, 

 

  
C

re
m

a
to

r 
H

e
a
rt

h
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t:

 

 

•
 

N
o
1
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
  
  
  
  

2
0
2

0
, 
2

0
2
3

,2
0

2
6
  

•
 

N
o
2
 C

re
m

a
to

r 
  
  
  

  
2
0

2
0
, 

2
0
2
3
,2

0
2

6
 

 

C
h
a
p
e
l 

 

Page 61



 
3
8

    
 

 

 
8

.2
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 R
e

p
a

ir
s
 (

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
) 

 

 
In

 
th

e
 
s
h
o
rt

 
(2

0
1

7
/1

8
) 

to
 
m

e
d
iu

m
 
te

rm
 
(2

0
1
8
/1

9
) 

o
u
r 

a
im

 
is

 
to

 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 
th

o
s
e
 
u
rg

e
n
t 

re
p

a
ir
 
a
n

d
 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 
w

o
rk

s
, 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

C
o
n

d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 r

e
p
a
ir

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 B

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e
r.

 

 
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 w
e

 h
a

d
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
 F

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
 t

u
rn

 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
d

is
a
b

le
d

 

to
ile

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 
T

h
e
re

 
w

ill
 
a
ls

o
 
b

e
 
th

e
 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

u
s
 
to

 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 
a

n
 
u
p
 
to

 
d
a
te

 
C

o
n
d
it
io

n
 
S

u
rv

e
y
. 

T
h
is

 
w

ill
 
e
n
s
u

re
 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
is

 m
a
d
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 o

u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
la

n
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 f
o
rm

 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

a
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
5
 y

e
a
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

. 

 
  

 
 8

.2
.1

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 P

la
n

  
  
 

  
O

u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 r

e
g
im

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

is
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

o
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 

w
it
h
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

ri
s
k
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 w
e

 r
e
g

im
e
, 
w

e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 m
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

a
s
s
e
ts

 w
ill

 

fa
ll 

in
to

 t
w

o
 d

is
ti
n
c
t 
c
a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
: 

 

•
 

R
e
a

c
ti

v
e
 

M
a
in

te
n

a
n
c

e
 

- 
i.
e
. 

th
e
 

re
p
a

ir
 

o
f 

c
o

m
p
o
n
e
n
ts

 
u
p
o

n
 

fa
ilu

re
. 

R
e
p
a

ir
 

m
a

y
 

h
a

v
e

 
to

 
ta

k
e
 

p
la

c
e

 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 (
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
) 

o
r 

a
lm

o
s
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 (
u
rg

e
n
t 

re
p

a
ir
s
) 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 m

a
y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 

to
 f

u
n
c
ti
o

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 o

r 
s
a
fe

ly
, 
a

n
d

 

•
 

P
la

n
n

e
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 –
 i
.e

. 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

re
a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

b
y
 r

e
p
la

c
in

g
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

re
p
a
ir
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 d
e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d
 t

o
 a

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
le

v
e
l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 c
o

m
p
ri
s
e
 o

f 
b
o
th

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 

o
f 

e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 i

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
/t
e
s
ti
n
g

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

re
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 (

ro
u
ti
n
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
) 

a
n
d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 r

e
p
a

ir
 o

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 r

e
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

c
y
c
le

s
 (

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
re

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o

n
) 

o
r 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l

if
e
c
y
c
le

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t/
e

le
m

e
n
t 

(f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 r
e
-r

o
o
fi
n
g
) 

 

 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 

Page 62



 
3
9

 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 n
e

e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

te
, 
a

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e

y
 m

a
y
  
a
ri
s
e
, 

a
n
d
 

w
e
 

w
ill

 

 
a
ls

o
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

T
h
o
s
e
 w

o
rk

s
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
re

 l
is

te
d

 

 
b
e
lo

w
, 

w
it
h
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

s
 n

o
t 
a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
-1

7
/1

8
, 

ro
lle

d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 l
is

te
d

 b
e
lo

w
 a

re
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

re
 i

n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
n
ly

. 
A

 F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

 

 
b
e
fo

re
 f

in
a
l 
b
u

d
g
e
t 

c
o
s
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
  

 
P

la
n

n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 2

0
1

7
/1

8
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 1
 

 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 
E

S
T

 C
O

S
T

  
  

  
  

 

R
e

-D
e

c
o

ra
ti
o

n
 W

o
rk

s
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

1
2

,5
0
0

* 

C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 c

re
m

a
to

ri
u

m
 +

 c
re

m
a

to
rs

 
R

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 /
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 

£
 

2
,5

0
7

,7
5

7
* 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

e
m

o
ri

a
l 
T

o
w

e
r 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

6
,0

0
0

* 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
ir

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
in

g
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

1
5

,0
0
0

* 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
le

c
te

rn
  

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

2
,5

0
0

* 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
c
a

rp
e

ts
 t

o
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

re
a
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

1
0

,0
0
0

* 

R
e

 v
a

m
p

 o
f 
re

m
a

in
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

h
ru

b
 b

e
d

s
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

8
,0

0
0

* 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 S

P
E

N
D

 
 

£
 

2
,5

6
1

,7
5

7
 

  
  

 
P

la
n

n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 2

0
1

8
/1

9
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 
E

S
T

 C
O

S
T

 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

e
m

o
ri

a
l 
T

o
w

e
r 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

6
,0

0
0

* 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 S

P
E

N
D

 
 

£
 

6
,0

0
0
 

   
P

la
n

n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 2

0
1

9
/2

0
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 3
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 
E

S
T

 C
O

S
T

 

R
e

-D
e

c
o

ra
ti
o

n
 W

o
rk

s
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

1
2

,5
0
0
 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

e
m

o
ri

a
l 
T

o
w

e
r 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

6
,0

0
0

* 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 S

P
E

N
D

 
 

£
 

1
8

,5
0
0
 

 
 

 

Page 63



 
4
0

 
P

la
n

n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 2

0
2

0
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 P

ri
o
ri

ty
 4

 
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 
E

S
T

 C
O

S
T

 

R
e

-D
e

c
o

ra
ti
o

n
 W

o
rk

s
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

1
2

,5
0
0
 

C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

R
e

-l
in

in
g

 o
f 
2

 c
re

m
a

to
rs

 x
1

 
P

re
m

is
e

s
 

£
 

7
1
,0

0
0
* 

C
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

R
e

-l
in

in
g

 o
f 
2

 h
e

a
rt

h
s
 x

1
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 

£
 

8
,5

0
0

* 

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 S

P
E

N
D

 
 

£
 

9
2

,0
0
0
 

  
8

.3
 S

u
it

a
b

il
it

y
  

  
  
 

 
In

 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 (
2
0
1
7
/1

8
),

 o
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
o
s
e
 i

s
s
u
e
s
 w

o
rk

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 i

m
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

O
u
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

o
u
r 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u

m
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 a

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

a
n
d
 d

ig
n
if
ie

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 I
n
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 (
2
0
1
8
-1

9
) 

o
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
to

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
o
s
e

 

is
s
u
e
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 r
e
p

o
rt

. 

  
8

.4
 A

c
c

e
s

s
ib

il
it

y
  

  
 

  
O

u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
a
re

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 

 

9
. 

 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 A

v
a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 D

e
li

v
e
r 

o
u

r 
P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

  
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 o

u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 R
e
p
a
ir
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
n
u

a
lly

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

M
o
u
n

ts
e
tt
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

lig
n
e

d
 t

o
 i
ts

 b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
e
tt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

 
In

 O
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 i

d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

is
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
, 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
:-

 

  
R

e
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u

e
 B

u
d
g

e
t 

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

 
R

e
d
u
c
e

d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 

 
P

ru
d
e

n
ti
a
l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 
 

Page 64



 

 

 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 
 

28 September 2016 
 
Financial Monitoring Report – Position at 
31/08/16, with Projected Outturn at 31/03/17 
 

 
 
 

Joint Report of Oliver Sherratt – Interim Corporate Director: 
Neighbourhood Services; Paul Darby – Interim Corporate Director: 
Resources and Treasurer to the Joint Committee. 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to set out details of income and expenditure in the period 1 
April 2016 to 31 August 2016, together with the provisional outturn position for 2016/17, 
highlighting areas of over / underspend against the revenue budgets at a service 
expenditure analysis level.  
 

2. The report also details the funds and reserves of the Joint Committee at 1 April 2016 
and forecast outturn position at 31 March 2017, taking into account the provisional 
financial outturn. 

 

Background 

3. Scrutinising the financial performance of the Mountsett Crematorium is a key role of the 
Joint Committee. Regular (quarterly) budgetary control reports are prepared by the 
Treasurer and aim to present, in a user friendly format, the financial performance in the 
year to date together with a forward projection to the year end. Routine reporting and 
consideration of financial performance is a key component of the Governance 
Arrangements of the Mountsett Crematorium. 

 

Financial Performance 

4. Budgetary control reports, incorporating outturn projections, are considered by 
Neighbourhood Services’ Management Team on a monthly basis. The County Council’s 
Corporate Management Team also considers monthly budgetary control reports, with 
quarterly reports being considered by Cabinet / Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The 
outturn projections for the Mountsett Crematorium are included within this report.  
 

5. The figures contained within this report have been extracted from the General Ledger 
and have been scrutinised and supplemented with information supplied by the 
Bereavement Services Manager. The following table highlights the provisional outturn 
financial performance of the Mountsett Crematorium: 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 67



 

Subjective Analysis  
Base Budget 

2016/17 
£ 

Year to Date 
Actual April – 

August 
£ 

Probable 
Outturn 
2016/17 

£ 

Variance 
Over/ 

(Under) 
£ 

Employees 141,717 45,193 138,861 (2,856) 

Premises  166,790 141,995 206,421 39,631 

Transport 600 136 600 0 

Supplies & Services  89,820 23,804 101,368 11,548 

Agency & Contracted 7,100 4,421 7,295 195 

Central Support Costs 26,100 0 26,100 0 

Gross Expenditure 432,127 215,549 480,645 48,518 

Income (878,000) (405,947) (1,008,070) (130,070) 

Net Income (445,873) (190,398) (527,425) (81,552) 

Transfer to (from) Reserves 
- Repairs Reserve 
- Cremator Reserve 
- General Reserve 

 
15,000 

265,983 
0 

 
0 
0 
0 

 
(49,246) 
411,781 

0 

 
(64,246) 
145,798 

0 

Distributable Surplus (164,890) 0 (164,890) 0 

65% Durham County Council 107,178 26,795 107,178 0 

35% Gateshead Council 57,712 14,428 57,712 0 

 

Mountsett Crematorium 
Earmarked Reserves 

Balance @ 
1 April 2016 

£ 

Transfers to 
Reserve 

£ 

Transfers 
From 

Reserve 
£ 

Balance @ 
31 March 2017 

£ 

Repairs Reserve 73,616 15,000 (64,246) 24,370 

Cremator Reserve 927,542 411,781 (21,330) 1,317,993 

General Reserve 242,070 21,330 0 263,400 

Total 1,243,228 448,111 (85,576) 1,605,763 

 
 
Explanation of Significant Variances between Original Budget and Forecast Outturn 
 
6. As can be seen from the table above, the projected outturn is showing a surplus 

(before transfers to reserves and distribution of surpluses to the partner authorities) 
of £527,425 against a budgeted surplus of £445,873, (£81,552) more than the 
budgeted position. The following section outlines the reasons for any significant 
variances by subjective analysis areas:  

 

Page 68



6.1 Employees 

The outturn shows an underspend of (£2,856) in relation to employee costs. The 
reasons for this are identified below: 
 

• An underspend of (£2,856) is projected for the vacant period relating to the 
Business Admin Apprentice post. 

 
6.2 Premises 

The outturn shows an overspend of £39,631 in relation to premises costs. The 
reasons for this are identified below: 

 

• Major repairs are projected to overspend by £5,010, mainly due to additional 
spend on the road and car park resurfacing budget. 

 

• A successful appeal against the rateable value of the Crematorium last year 
has resulted in a revised Business Rate charge in 2016/17 of £20,377 
compared to the budget of £45,000, a saving of (£24,623). 

 

• Costs relating to the car park extension have resulted in an approved 
overspend of £64,246 

 

• Gas charges are projected to underspend by (£5,002) due to falling gas 
prices. 

 

6.3 Supplies and Services 

The outturn shows an overspend of £11,548 in relation to supplies and services. The 
reasons for this are highlighted below: 

 

• General and sundry items are expected to be overspend by £1,673. 
 

• It is anticipated that the Book of Remembrance calligraphy costs will be 
overspent by £1,000. 

 

• Due to the projected increase in cremations medical referee expenditure is 
projected to overspend by £3,135. 

 

• The environmental surcharges payable for tradable mercury abated 
cremations from the CAMEO scheme is predicted to overspend by £5,740, 
again due to the increase in cremation numbers.  

 

6.4 Income 

An increase in income of (£130,070) from the 2016/17 budget is included within the 
outturn. The reasons for this are identified below: 

 

• The updated outturn projection has taken into consideration a forecast 
additional 190 more cremations compared to budget, totalling an increased 
income to budget of (£123,500). The outturn allows for a total of 1,490 
cremations against a budget estimate of 1,300 during the 2016/17 financial 
year.   

Page 69



 

• Miscellaneous income is projected to be higher than budget by (£2,714). 
 

• Book of Remembrance and Memorial Plaque income is forecast to be 
(£3,857) higher than budget. 

 
6.5 Earmarked Reserves 

Contributions to the earmarked reserves are forecast as (£81,552) more than 
originally budgeted, primarily due to the increase in cremation income during the 
year. 
 
In line with the MCJC Reserve Policy to maintain a General Reserve of 30% of the 
income budget, a transfer to the General Reserve of (£21,330) is required in year. 
This results in a net transfer to the Cremator Replacement Reserve of £390,451. 
 
The retained reserves of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee at 31 March 
2016 are forecast to be £1,342,363, along with a General Reserve of £263,400 , 
giving a forecast total reserves and balances position of £1,605,763 at the year end. 

 

Recommendations and reasons 

7. It is recommended that: 

• Members note the April to August 2016 revenue spend financial monitoring 
report and associated provisional outturn position at 31 March 2017, including  
the projected year end position with regards to the reserves and balances of 
the Joint Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact(s): Philip Curran, Finance Manager – Neighbourhoods 03000 261 967 
  Ed Thompson, Principal Accountant       03000 263 481 

Page 70



Appendix 1:  Implications 
 

Finance 

Full details of the year to date and projected outturn financial performance of the Mountsett 
Crematorium are included within the body of the report.  
 
Staffing 

There are no staffing implications associated with this report. 
 
Risk  

The figures contained within this report have been extracted from the General Ledger, and 
have been scrutinised and supplemented with information supplied by the Bereavement 
Services Manager. The projected outturn has been produced taking into consideration 
spend to date, trend data and market intelligence, and includes an element of prudence. 
This, together with the information supplied by the Bereavement Services Manager should 
mitigate the risks associated with achievement of the forecast outturn position.  
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty  

There are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with this report. 
 
Accommodation 

There are no Accommodation implications associated with this report. 
 
Crime and Disorder 

There are no Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report. 
 
Human Rights 

There are no Human Rights implications associated with this report  
 
Consultation 

None. However, Officers of Gateshead Council were provided with a copy of the report and 
given opportunity to comments / raise any detailed queries on the contents of this report in 
advance of circulation to members of the Joint Committee. 
 
Procurement  

None 
 
Disability Issues  

None 
 
Legal Implications 

The outturn proposals contained within this report have been prepared in accordance with 
standard accounting policies and procedures. 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 
 

28 September 2016 
 

Risk Register 2016/17 
 

 

 

 
 
 

Joint Report of Oliver Sherratt – Interim Corporate Director: 
Neighbourhood Services; Paul Darby – Interim Corporate Director: 
Resources and Treasurer to the Joint Committee 

 
Purpose of the Report 

1. To provide an update on the current position with regards to the Risk Register of the 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee. 

 

Background 

2. A Risk Assessment report was presented to members at the April 2016 meeting which 
included a comprehensive risk register that identified all known risks of a Service and 
Operational nature, with all risks scored using the Durham County Council methodology 
approach to Risk Management. In approving the report, the Committee committed to 
regular monitoring and reporting of both strategic and operation risks.  

 
Risk Assessment – September 2016 
 
3. The Risk Register considered and approved by the Joint Committee on 29th April 2016 

has been reviewed, reassessed and updated in accordance with the Durham County 
Council methodology/approach to Risk Management. This entails an assessment of 
both the gross and net risk from each area, the difference between the gross and net 
risk score being that the net risk result is after taking into account existing control 
measures. 

 
4. In line with the previous report, two risk registers have been prepared, separately 

identifying Service and Operational risks.  
 
5. Both sections of the Risk Register have been reviewed by the Risk Officer responsible 

for Neighbourhood Services and the Bereavement Services Manager.  Net risk ratings 
have been agreed by consensus and actions to mitigate and/or tackle issues arising 
from the individual risks have been agreed for the forthcoming year.   

 
6. The Service Risks (i.e. those that are key to the service achieving its strategic 

objectives and priorities for improvement, linked to service improvement plans and the 
budget setting cycle) have been plotted onto a risk matrix, based on Net Risk Scores. 
This is set out at Appendix 2. The risk matrix plots the risk to a grid based upon the 
assessment of likelihood and impact scores.  The higher a risk is in the top right corner 
of the matrix the bigger a risk it is to the service. 

 
7. The crematorium car park extension was completed on time.  

 
 

8. Major refurbishment work involving installation of new cremators and an extension is 
due to start in January 2017.  A full risk assessment for this project has been completed 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 73



and is attached in appendix 4. This will be updated in the April 2017 review once the 
works are underway. 

 
9. As with Service Risks, the Operational Risks (i.e. those that are key to the operational 

areas of the service which relate to individual tasks carried out on a routine basis) have 
also been plotted onto a risk matrix and these are set out at Appendix 3. 

 
10. There have been no changes to the remaining Operational Net Risk Scores following 

the review and all risks are considered to be at a tolerable level. 
 

Embedding Risk Management - Monitoring and Review 
 
11. In order to ensure that risk management is embedded and that the risk register is kept 

up to date, regular reviews will continue to be carried out to ensure any new and 
emerging risks are identified, existing risks are removed if no longer appropriate and 
existing risks are reviewed taking into account current issues. 

 
Conclusions 
 
12. The original risk register has been revised and updated and rescored in accordance 

with Durham County Council criteria.   
 
Recommendations  
 
13. It is recommended that: 

 

•    Members of the Mountsett Joint Crematorium Committee note the content of this 
report and the updated position. 

•   The Risk Registers be kept up to date and reviewed by the Joint Committee on 
a half yearly basis.  

 
Background Papers 
  

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 29 April 
2016. 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 25 
September 2015. 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 24 April 
2015. 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 3 

October 2014. 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 4 
October 2013. 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 31 

January 2013 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 
September 2012 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 27 
January 2012 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 30 
September 2011 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee – 4 
February 2011   

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee –  

Page 74



23 September 2010 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee –  
29 January 2010 

• Risk Assessment – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee –  
12 June 2009 

• External Audit Report – Report to Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee –  
30 October 2009 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact(s): Ed Thompson, Principal Accountant       03000 263 481 
  Teresa Morgan, Strategic Insurance & Risk Officer  03000 269 666 

Page 75



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 
 

Finance 
 
There are no financial implications associated with this report. Exposure to financial risk is 
integral to the gross and net risk assessments undertaken and included in the Risk 
Registers attached at Appendix 2 and 3. 
 
Staffing 
 
There are no staffing implications associated with this report. 
 
Risk 
 
There are no implications in this report 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
There are no implications in this report 
 
Accommodation 
 
There are no implications in this report 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
There are no implications in this report 
 
Human Rights 
 
None 
 
Consultation 
 
Officers of Gateshead Council were consulted on the contents of this report. 
 
Procurement 
 
None 
 
Disability Issues 
 
None 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



Appendix 2:  Service Risk Register 
 

RISK MATRIX 

5 
Highly 
Probable 

     

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

 4 Probable      

3 Possible  9    

2 Unlikely  3, 6    

1 Remote  
1, 2, 4, 5, & 

7  
8   

  Insignificant 
(Score 1-3) 

Minor       
(Score 4-6) 

Moderate 
(Score 7-9) 

Major    
(Score 10-12) 

Critical 
(Score 13-15) 

  IMPACT  

 

Risk. 
No. 

Risk – By Risk Number 
Net 
Risk 
Score 

Ranking 

1 Not implementing changes in legislation 6 5 

2 Non compliance with the current fire order 6 5 

3 Sickness absence of Key staff 20 1 

4 
Disclosure of confidential information through incorrect 
disposal/maintenance of information 

5 8 

5 Failure of Cremators 6 5 

6 Power Failure 10 3 

7 Loss of Income/Money 5 8 

8 Breakdown of Partnership 7 4 

9 Managing Excess Deaths 12 2 

Page 77



 

Risk. 
No. 

Risk – Ranked by Net Risk Score 
Net 
Risk 
Score 

Ranking 

3 Sickness absence of key staff  20 1 

9 Managing Excess Deaths 12 2 

6 Power Failure 10 3 

8 Breakdown of Partnership 7 4 

1 Not implementing changes in legislation 6 5 

2 Non compliance with the new fire order 6 5 

5 Failure of Cremators 6 5 

4 Disclosure of confidential information through incorrect 
disposal/maintenance of information 

5 8 

7 Loss of Income/Money 5 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



Appendix 3:  Operational Risk Register 
 
 

RISK MATRIX 

5 
Highly 
Probable 

     

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

 4 Probable      

3 Possible      

2 Unlikely  7    

1 Remote 8 2,3,4,5 1,6   

  Insignificant 
(Score 1-3) 

Minor       
(Score 4-6) 

Moderate 
(Score 7-9) 

Major    
(Score 10-12) 

Critical 
(Score 13-15) 

  IMPACT  

 

Risk. 
No. 

Risk – By Risk Number 
Net 
Risk 
Score 

Ranking 

1 Injury to staff and visitors 7 2 

2 Exterior Pathways and Steps 5 5 

3 Use of hand tools and machinery for gardening 5 5 

4 Cleaning Duties 5 5 

5 Violence/Assault from Member of the Public 6 4 

6 Fire 7 2 

7 Risk Assessments and Reviews not undertaken 10 1 

8 Slips, trips and falls 3 8 

 

Page 79



 

Risk. 
No. 

Risk – Ranked by Net Risk Score 
Net 
Risk 
Score 

Ranking 

7 Risk Assessments and Reviews not undertaken 10 1 

1 Injury to staff and visitors 7 2 

6 Fire 7 2 

2 Exterior Pathways and Steps 5 5 

3 Use of hand tools and machinery for gardening 5 5 

4 Cleaning Duties 5 5 

5 Violence/Assault from Member of the Public 6 4 

8 Slips, trips and falls 3 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



 

DESCRIPTION OF RISK 

Business Unit Mountsett Crematorium 

Risk  New Risk 

Risk Owner Graham Harrison  

Detail of Risk Strategic Risk 

Adverse impact on Crematorium business due to the building of a new 
extension to house the new cremators works to start January 2017 

BACKGROUND TO RISK EVENT 

Risk Causes • Contractors do not satisfactorily manage site safety and disruption due 
to refurbishment   

• Contractors do not complete the project on time and within budget. 

Potential Impact • Injury to members of the public/ staff. 

• Loss of income due to clients being put off by the surroundings of the 
crematorium while works being carried out during opening hours. 

• Reputational damage. 

• Adverse financial impact. 

GROSS RISK ASSESSMENT 

Financial Impact (1 to 5) 2 

Service Delivery Impact (1 to 5) 4 

Stakeholder Impact (1 to 5) 3 

Total Gross Impact Score (sum above) 9 

(Moderate) 

Likelihood (1 to 5) 4 

(Probable) 

Total Gross Risk Score (Total Impact * Likelihood) 36 

Existing Control Measures  

• Contractor’s supervisor will be on site at all times during the works to ensure works are left in safe state. 

• Contractors on site during crematorium opening hours but the works being carried out are at the rear of the building 
which has limited public access. 

NET RISK ASSESSMENT 

Financial Impact (1 to 5) 1 

Service Impact (1 to 5) 3 

Stakeholder Impact (1 to 5) 3 

Total Net Impact Score (sum above) 7 

(Moderate) 

Likelihood (1 to 5) 3  

(Possible) 

Total Net Risk Score (Total Impact * Likelihood) 21 

CONCLUSION 

• TOLERATE after taking into account existing control measures and planned actions  

CONTROL IMPROVEMENTS/ ACTIONS 

Activity Responsible Timescales 

Contractor & Bereavement Services Manager to complete a risk assessment of the works 
prior to commencement of the build. 

G Harrison 31/12/16 

Completed by Date 

T Morgan/G Harrison  17
th

 August 2016 

 

Appendix 4: New Risk 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 
   
    

Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 
 

28 September 2016 
 
Annual Review of the System of Internal 
Audit  
 

 
 
 

Joint Report of Oliver Sherratt – Interim Corporate Director: 
Neighbourhood Services; Paul Darby – Interim Corporate Director: 
Resources and Treasurer to the Joint Committee  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to advise the Joint Committee of a review of effectiveness 
of the Durham County Council Internal Audit Service, which was carried out by the 
County Council’s Audit Committee in July 2016. 

 
Background 
 

2. The Joint Committee’s internal audit provider is Durham County Council Internal Audit 
Services. The service is delivered in accordance with a Service Level Agreement 
(SLA) approved by the Joint Committee in January 2014.   

 
3. In order to place reliance on the work of internal audit, and the annual audit opinion 

provided through it on the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment 
operating across the Joint Committee, it is important that the Joint Committee is 
assured that the service is effective. 

 
4. Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, Durham County Council as a large 

public body is required to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of its Internal 
Audit Service.  Whilst there is no such legal requirement for the Joint Committee as a 
small body under these regulations to do likewise, assurance can be provided on the 
effectiveness of the service provided to the Joint Committee from this review. 

 
Conformance with UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
 
5. In April 2013, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) became effective.  

These standards apply to Internal Audit in all parts of the public sector in the UK and 
are mandatory.  The standards are intended to reflect that “a professional, independent 
and objective internal audit service is one of the key elements of good governance”. 
 

6. The PSIAS introduced a requirement for an external assessment of an organisation’s 
internal audit function, which must be conducted at least once every five years by a 
qualified, independent reviewer from outside of the organisation.  
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 83



 
   
    
7. Durham County Council, Newcastle City Council, South Tyneside Council and North 

Tyneside Council group have established a ‘peer-review’ process that is managed and 
operated by the constituent authorities. This process addresses the requirement of 
external assessment by ‘self-assessment with independent external validation’ and this 
report presents the summary findings of the review carried out on behalf of Durham 
County Council. 
 

8. The outcome of this assessment is attached as Appendix 2. 
 
Summary of the outcomes from the review carried out by DCC Audit Committee 

 
9. The Audit Committee considered a report presented by the Chief Internal Audit and 

Fraud Manager that provided evidence on the effectiveness of the service during 
2015/16, that incorporated the outcomes of the external assessment.  Having 
considered the evidence, the Committee concluded that sufficient assurance had been 
provided that the service was effective. In reaching this conclusion regarding the 
current arrangements for Internal Audit, the Committee considered: 

 

• The structure and resourcing level, including qualifications and experience of the 
audit team. 

• The extent of conformance with the PSIAS in producing quality work. 

• Ensuring audit work was successfully delivered in the most appropriate areas on a 
prioritised (risk) basis. 

• The overall performance of the Internal Audit team. 
 

Other Relevant Performance Indicators 
 

10. Following each annual audit, a post audit satisfaction survey is issued to the 
Crematorium Superintendent.  The feedback from the 2015/16 audit returned an 
average score of 5 where 1 is very poor and 5 is very good.  

 
Recommendation and Reasons 
 

11. The Joint Committee is asked to note: 
 

• The information provided that demonstrates the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
Durham County Council Internal Audit Service. 

 
Background Documents 
Report to DCC Audit Committee 29 July 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact(s): Paul Darby, Interim Corporate Director: Resources  

Page 84



 
   
    
 

 Appendix 1: Implications 
 

Finance 
 
None 
 
Staffing 
 
None 
 
Risk – Not a key decision  
 
Equality and Diversity 
 
None  
 
Accommodation 
 
None  
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
None  
 
Human Rights 
 
None  
 
Consultation 
 
None 
 
Procurement 
 
None  
  
Disability Issues 
 
None  
 
Legal Implications 
 
Compliance with the Account and Audit Regulations 2011 
 
             

   

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



CONFIDENTIAL

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

PEER REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT
AGAINST THE UK PUBLIC SECTOR

INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS

CARRIED OUT BY:
NEWCASTLE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT DATE: JULY 2016

Appendix 2

Page 87



External Assessment of Durham County Council Internal Audit Service

CONFIDENTIAL

1. Introduction

1.1 In April 2013, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) became
effective.  These standards apply to Internal Audit in all parts of the public
sector in the UK and are mandatory.  The standards are intended to reflect
that “a professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of
the key elements of good governance”.

1.2 The PSIAS introduced a requirement for an external assessment of an
organisation’s internal audit function, which must be conducted at least once
every five years by a qualified, independent reviewer from outside of the
organisation.

1.3 Durham County Council, Newcastle City Council, South Tyneside Council and
North Tyneside Council have established a ‘peer-review’ process that is
managed and operated by the constituent authorities. This process addresses
the requirement of external assessment by ‘self-assessment with independent
external validation’ and this report presents the summary findings of the
review carried out on behalf of Durham County Council.

1.4 The assessment was carried out April and May 2016.

2. Purpose

2.1 The purpose of the external assessment is to help improve delivery of the
Internal Audit Service and establish whether governance requirements
relating to provision of the Service are embedded. The assessment should be
a supportive process that identifies opportunities for development and
enhances the value of the audit service to the authority.

3. Approach/Methodology

3.1 Review of Self-Assessment

The Chief Audit Executive (Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud
Manager) had completed a self-assessment of Durham County Council’s
Internal Audit Service, and its compliance with the Standards. The self-
assessment was used as the basis for the external assessment, which was
then evidenced with reference to a range of internal and published
documentation.

3.2 Further Evidence Gathering and Testing

Operational practices were discussed with the Chief Internal Auditor and
Corporate Fraud Manager and the Audit and Fraud Managers.

A meeting was held with the Corporate Director, Resources to explore the key
expectations of the Internal Audit Service.

Page 88



External Assessment of Durham County Council Internal Audit Service

CONFIDENTIAL

To support and further inform the assessment, a sample of internal audit files
was randomly selected and compared against the requirements of the
Standards and the related Local Government Application Note. The files
selected for review were:

• Agency Staff

• Licensing

• Internet Security

• Budgetary Control (Durham Constabulary)

4. Opinion of External Assessment

4.1 This external assessment concludes that Durham County Council’s Internal
Audit Service conforms to the requirements of the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards. There are some areas which require action but these do not
significantly impact on the overall opinion.

5. Executive Summary

5.1 It was evident from the self-assessment, review of supporting evidence and
on site interview with the Corporate Director, Resources that the Service is
valued and is seen as making a positive contribution to the continuous
improvement of governance, risk management and internal control.

5.2 The Service is viewed as independent, operating to ethical standards and
operates with a high level of professionalism and integrity. This is achieved
through the planned programme of audit work but also the engagement and
involvement of the Service in system development and working groups
looking at changing ways of working.  This is further enhanced by the
Corporate Fraud Team sitting directly under the management of the Chief
Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager.

5.3 The Corporate Director, Resources expressed his opinion that the leadership
style of the Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager has made a
significant impact in improving both the profile and perceived value of the
Service since his appointment.  This is supported by the Service winning
external business in the recent past.

6. Findings

6.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards include a specific definition of
Internal Auditing (expected to be used whenever the function of internal audit
is explained, for example in the Audit Charter); a Code of Ethics and eleven
specific standards.  The standards are divided into attribute standards and
performance standards as follows:

Attribute Standards

• Purpose, authority and responsibility

• Independence and objectivity

• Proficiency and due professional care

Page 89



External Assessment of Durham County Council Internal Audit Service

CONFIDENTIAL

• Quality assurance and improvement programme

Performance Standards

• Managing the internal audit activity

• Nature of work

• Engagement planning

• Performing the engagement

• Communicating results

• Monitoring progress

• Communicating the acceptance of risks

6.2 The evidence examined as part of the assessment demonstrated that the
Internal Audit Service was compliant with the majority of the Standards.  A
summary of this is detailed below.

Purpose, authority and responsibility

6.3 Internal Audit has an Audit Charter which defines its purpose, authority and
responsibility. The Charter was last revised in June 2015 and approved by the
Audit Committee.

Independence and Objectivity

6.4 The Chief Audit Executive was appointed by management not the Board.
Whilst this is not in accordance with PSIAS it is in line with standard practice
within Local Government and in our opinion is an appropriate deviation from
the Standard.

6.5 The Standards expect feedback to be sought from the Chair of the Audit
Committee and Chief Executive as part of the Chief Audit Executive’s
performance appraisal. At present, this appraisal is performed by the
Corporate Director, Resources who confirmed that informal feedback is
provided throughout the year and this informs the appraisal process. In our
opinion this is an appropriate approach and in line with standard practice
within Local Government.

6.6 All staff within the service are required to complete a Record of Personal
Interests, including a statement confirming they understand PSIAS and the
requirements of the Code of Ethics and the Seven Principles of Public Life, on
an annual basis.  However, the declarations completed early in the 2015/16
financial year could not be located at the time of the assessment.  The
previous declarations, completed by most staff in July / August 2013 (January
2014 for the Corporate Fraud Team), are the latest declarations held.

6.7 The roles of the Audit and Fraud managers within the Service are not
periodically rotated due to their experience and knowledge of the areas they
oversee although arrangements are in place to rotate staff completing audits.
This should be kept under review to ensure there is no actual or perceived
conflict of interest which could compromise independence and objectivity.

Page 90



External Assessment of Durham County Council Internal Audit Service

CONFIDENTIAL

Proficiency and due professional care

6.8 The Chief Audit Executive is professionally qualified (CIPFA) and has over 20
years of experience working in local government.  Staff within the Service
have a range of financial qualifications and a number of individuals are
currently studying. The Service also possess qualifications and experience in
the areas of fraud and IT.

Quality assurance and improvement programme

6.9 The Chief Audit Executive has a formally documented Quality Assurance and
Improvement Programme (QAIP) Framework which was agreed in October
2015.  This comprises 2 elements:

• Internal Review
Incorporating quality assurance checks on samples of completed audits
and performance reporting of internal audit activity.  The outcomes of
these were reported to Audit Committee in June 2015 as part of the
Annual Review of the System of Internal Audit.

• External Review
The Standards require an external assessment at least once every five
years. This peer review assessment satisfies this requirement of the
Standard.

Managing the internal audit activity

6.10 There is a robust audit planning process in place which involves consultation
with key stakeholders including Service Group Management Teams,
Corporate Management Team and Audit Committee. The audit plan also
demonstrates clear links to the objectives within the Council’s corporate plan.

6.11 The Chief Audit Executive has overseen the development of the Assurance
Map for the Council and has used this to inform audit planning for 2016/17.

Nature of work

6.12 The Service’s systems and processes for undertaking work are supported by
the Audit Manual and the use of the Galileo audit management system which
contains all information relevant to individual assignments.

6.13 The Chief Audit Executive is also responsible for the Risk Management
section within the Council and this enables them to understand the
arrangements in place. A Fraud Risk Register is also maintained.
Independent peer reviews are undertaken by external sources where
appropriate.

Page 91



External Assessment of Durham County Council Internal Audit Service

CONFIDENTIAL

Engagement planning

6.14 A terms of reference is prepared and agreed for each assignment. The terms
of reference identifies key officers, audit objectives, audit scope, approach,
reporting arrangements and anticipated timescale for completion.

6.15 The planned dates for completion and associated resource budgets are
recorded within the Galileo system to enable managers to monitor progress.

6.16 When reviewing a sample of personal interest records one auditor declared
their mother worked in an area where they subsequently undertook audit
work. Whilst it is clear that this did not impact upon the audit and there was no
conflict this should have been highlighted as a potential conflict at the outset
and risk assessed to confirm independence could not be compromised.

Performing the engagement

6.16 Detailed working papers are held on Galileo to support each engagement
undertaken.  These are completed by the auditor and reviewed by the
responsible supervising officer assigned to the engagement.

6.17 The quality assurance and improvement programme reviews a sample of
engagements.  These are supported by sufficient, appropriate evidence and
are completed to expected standards.

Communicating results

6.18 There are established mechanisms in place for discussing and agreeing audit
reports.  The final reports contain the internal auditor’s opinion, an action plan
which prioritises recommendations and management responses to the
recommendations made.  There is no indication that management unduly
influence the outcomes of the audit.

6.19 The Chief Audit Executive produces an annual internal audit opinion which
concludes on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the County Council’s
framework of governance, risk management and control. This includes all
expected elements.  However, it does not explicitly state that there are no
qualifications to the opinion.

Monitoring progress

6.20 All recommendations made are recorded within the Galileo audit management
system and there are formal follow up processes in place. Recommendations
follow up forms part of quarterly monitoring reports to Audit Committee and
senior management are provided information in advance of these meetings.

Communicating the acceptance of risks

6.21 There are no examples of management accepting a level of risk which is
unacceptable to the Council.  However, should this be the case the formal

Page 92



External Assessment of Durham County Council Internal Audit Service

CONFIDENTIAL

reporting mechanisms to Audit Committee provide an appropriate route to
raise such concerns.

7 Impact of non-conformance and steps to be taken to ensure
conformance.

7.1 Any non-conformance with the standards and the impact must be disclosed to
senior management and the Audit Committee. The Chief Internal Auditor has
agreed that an action plan will be drafted to respond to the areas of non-
conformance for consideration by the Audit Committee. (Appendix 1)

8 Conduct of the External Assessment

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

This external assessment of Durham County Council’s Internal Audit Service
has been conducted in accordance with Standard 1312 (External
Assessments) of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the related
CIPFA Local Government Application Note.

Such external assessments must be conducted at least once in every five
years by a qualified, independent assessor / assessment team from outside
the organisation.

The qualified assessor / assessment team must demonstrate competence in
two areas – the professional practice of internal auditing, and the external
assessment process.

Regarding competence, the Standards state that experience gained in
organisations of similar size, complexity, sector or industry and technical
issues is more valuable than less relevant experience.

Regarding independence, the independent assessor must not have either a
real or an apparent conflict of interest and must not be a part of, or under the
control of, the organisation to which the internal audit activity belongs.

I certify that as the external assessor as defined in the PSIAS, I am a qualified
Accountant (ACCA Affiliate) and have 18 years of audit experience.  For the
last 10 years my experience has been gained in a comparable sector (local
government). I have no conflict of interest in performing this assessment in
respect of Durham County Council’s Internal Audit Service – I am not a part
of, or under the control of, Durham County Council.

Ian Pattison
Principal Auditor
Newcastle City Council
Civic Centre
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 8QH

Page 93



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

–
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

O
b

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s

p
o

n
s

e

T
h
e

 R
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
In

te
re

s
ts

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 a

u
d

it
 y

e
a

r
c
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 l
o

c
a

te
d

.

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

R
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
In

te
re

s
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
s
e

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

In
te

rn
a

l
A

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

ra
u

d
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r.

T
h
e

s
e

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

u
t 

d
u

e
 t
o

 a
n

o
ff

ic
e

 m
o

v
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 d

e
s
tr

o
y
e

d
 i
n
 e

rr
o

r.
T

h
e

re
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
n

u
a

lly
 a

n
d

g
o

in
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 m

a
d
e

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
s
o

 t
h

is
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
h

a
p
p

e
n
 a

g
a

in
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

.

T
h
e

 r
o

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
a

n
d

 F
ra

u
d

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p

e
ri
o

d
ic

a
lly

 r
o

ta
te

d
 d

u
e

to
 t

h
e

ir
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
n
d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

a
re

a
s
 t
h

e
y
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
.

T
h
e

C
h

ie
f 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

F
ra

u
d

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

ro
ta

ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

 A
u

d
it

a
n

d
 F

ra
u

d
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
. 

 I
f 

th
is

is
 n

o
t 
fe

a
s
ib

le
 h

e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 k

e
e
p

 t
h

e
s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

 u
n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s

n
o

 a
c
tu

a
l 
o

r 
p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

c
e

a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
.

T
h
e

s
it
u
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
a

n
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

re
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
.

W
h
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l

in
te

re
s
t 

re
c
o

rd
s
 o

n
e

 a
u
d

it
o

r 
d

e
c
la

re
d

th
e

ir
 m

o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

 a
re

a
 w

h
e

re
th

e
y
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d
e

rt
o

o
k
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

.
W

h
ils

t 
it
 i
s
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

th
is

 d
id

 n
o

t 
im

p
a

c
t

u
p

o
n

 t
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t
th

is
 s

h
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 f
o

rm
a

lly
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
.

W
h
e
re

 t
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
o
f

in
te

re
s
t 
a

 n
o

te
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

a
u

d
it
 f

ile
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

re
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
e
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b

e
c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e
d

.

A
g
re

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
w

h
ils

t 
th

is
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
o
n
fl
ic

t
h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 i
t 

w
a

s
 n

o
t

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

te
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 f

ile
 h

e
ld

w
it
h

i n
 t

h
e

 A
u
d

it
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

G
a

lil
e

o
).

  
A

re
m

in
d
e

r 
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
w

h
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

is
 n

a
tu

re
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

.

T
h
e

 I
n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
O

p
in

io
n

 d
o

e
s

n
o

t 
e

x
p

lic
it
ly

 s
ta

te
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 o
p

in
io

n
.

T
h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

F
ra

u
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
in

 h
is

 a
n

n
u
a
l 
o

p
in

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
e

x
p

lic
it
ly

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
s

to
 h

is
 o

p
in

io
n

.

A
g
re

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

2
0

1
5

/1
6
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
O

p
in

io
n

 t
o

b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
6

.

Page 94



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

–
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Mountsett Crematorium  
Joint Committee 
 

28 September 2016 
 
Provision of Internal Audit & Risk 
Management Services 2017-2020 
 

 
 

Report of the Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager 
 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to present the Committee with proposals for the 
continued delivery of Internal Audit and Risk Management Services by Durham 
County Council to cover the period April 2017 to March 2020. 

 
Background 
 

2. The current service level agreement for the provision of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management Services, approved by the Joint Committee at its meeting on 30 January 
2014 expires on 31 March 2017. 

 
Proposal  
 
3. It is proposed that a 3 year SLA is agreed covering the period 2017/18 to 2019/20.  In 

practice as the annual reporting of work carried out and the annual audit opinion is not 
concluded until after the financial year end the proposed agreement will continue up to 
June 2020.  The proposed SLA, covering both internal audit and risk management 
services is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
4. The proposed annual plan of work to be carried out under this agreement, reflecting 

the same level of service as currently supplied, is set out in Schedule 2 of the SLA.  
The annual fee for each of the 3 years, also shown in Schedule 2, is £5,670 for 
Internal Audit and £580 for Risk Management. 

 
5. The SLA is supplemented by a detailed Internal Audit Charter which sets out the terms 

of reference and audit strategy for how the internal audit service is to be delivered.  
The Charter is subject to annual review and was last approved by the Joint Committee 
at its meeting of 29 April 2016. 

 
6. In considering the agreement of the SLA, the Committee is reminded that each year 

the County Council’s Audit Committee carries out a review of the effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit Service, in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011.   

 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 97



7. As a smaller body under these regulations, there is no requirement for the Joint 
Committee to carry out such a review.  However in accordance with previous practice, 
the outcomes of the last review, carried out via external assessment in May 2016, 
have been considered by the Treasurer to the Joint Committee. A report summarising 
the findings has been presented for consideration of the Joint Committee as a 
separate agenda item for this meeting. 

 
Recommendations and Reasons 
 
8. The Joint Committee is asked to 
 

• Approve the proposed Internal Audit & Risk Management Services SLA with 
Durham County Council covering the next 3 financial years as attached at Appendix 
2. 

• Approve the proposed annual audit plan and fee as set out in Schedule 2 of the 
SLA. 

• When considering the above, to have regard to the report prepared by the Joint 
Committee’s Treasurer relating to the effectiveness of Durham County Council’s 
Internal Audit Service. 

 
 
Background Documents 

• Existing SLA covering the period April 2014 to March 2017 

• Public Sector Internal Audit Standards that came into effect 1 April 2013, and 
CIPFA’s accompanying Local Government Application Note (PSIAS and LGAN) 

• Annual Review of Effectiveness – Report of Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate 
Fraud Manager to DCC Audit Committee 29 July 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact(s): Paul Bradley, Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager  
Tel:   03000 269 645  
 

Page 98



 

 Appendix 1: Implications 
 

Finance 
 
The annual audit fee is set out in the report.  
 
Staffing 
 
None 
 
Risk – Not a key decision  
 
Equality and Diversity 
 
None  
 
Accommodation 
 
None  
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
None  
 
Human Rights 
 
None  
 
Consultation 
Paul Darby, Interim Corporate Director: Resources, Durham County Council was consulted 
on the contents of this report. 
 
Procurement 
 
Purchase of Internal Audit and Risk Management Services as set out in the report  
  
Disability Issues 
 
None  
 
Legal Implications 
 
Compliance with the Account and Audit Regulations 2011 
 
 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



         
 
 
  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Level Agreement 
 
 

for the provision of Internal Audit Services to 
 
 

MOUNTSETT CREMATORIUM  
JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
 

2017-2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 

Page 101



 1

AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF AN INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

THIS AGREEMENT is made 28 September two thousand and sixteen 

BETWEEN DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL (the Council) and MOUNTSETT 

CREMATORIUM JOINT COMMITTEE (“the Partnership”) 

1. PROVISION OF SERVICES 

1.1. The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee engages the Council to 
provide an Internal Audit service as set out in Schedule 1 and in return 
for the payments as set out in Schedule 2. 

2. DURATION 

2.1. This agreement will be effective from 01 April 2017 and will cover the 3 
financial years 2017/18 to 2019/20 with work carried out in 2019/20 
being concluded and reported by 30 June 2020, subject to cancellation 
as set out in clause 9. 

3. THE COUNCIL’S OBLIGATIONS 

3.1. Services 

3.1.1. The scope of the Audit Service available to the Mountsett Crematorium 
Joint Committee is summarised in Schedule 1. 

 
3.1.2. The Council will provide an Internal Audit service with all reasonable skill 

and care and in compliance with: 
 

• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 

• The UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

• The Internal Audit Charter with sets out the terms of reference and 
audit strategy for how the service is to be delivered 

• The terms and conditions of this agreement    
 

3.1.3. The Council will provide strategic risk management and corporate 
governance support, if required, in accordance with best professional 
practice, and as provided for in the audit fee provision (see clause 
4.1.1).  

3.2. Accommodation 

3.2.1. To provide at its own cost its own office accommodation, administrative 
support and services as may be necessary for the provision of the 
Service. 

 

Page 102



 2

3.3. Insurance 

3.3.1. To ensure that adequate insurance cover is affected and maintained in 
respect of, any property held by it for the purposes of this agreement, 
employee liability, public liability and liability for professional negligence. 

4. THE JOINT COMMITTEE’S OBLIGATIONS   

4.1. Audit Fee Provision 
 
4.1.1. To make available such audit fee provision as set out in Schedule 2 for 

the provision of agreed services for the year 2017/18 and the two 
subsequent years.  Notwithstanding the contents of Schedule 2, the 
audit fee provision will be the subject of annual review and agreement 
by both parties as part of the Joint Committee’s normal budget 
timetable. Final confirmation of the audit fee provision must be agreed 
no later than the 31st March in each year.  

 
4.1.2. Both parties intend that the annual audit fee provision will be set at such 

a level as to cover the costs incurred by the Council in delivering the 
annual internal audit plan, any elements of risk management and / or 
corporate governance work and a contingency provision for unplanned 
work.  An indicative annual budget and number of days allocated to 
each of these areas as at the date of this agreement is set out in 
Schedule 2. 

 
4.1.3. The parties agree that, without affecting the annual audit fee provision 

and the principles set out in Schedule 2, at the Joint Committee’s 
request; 

 

• the percentage split between the service elements to be provided can 
be varied up to 10% provided always that the maximum number of 
days specified in Schedule 2 is not exceeded. 

 

• Any surplus (unused) contingency days in any financial year may be 
used during the same financial year on any element of work as 
agreed between the two parties. 

 

• Any surplus (unused) allocated days in any financial year not required 
for the delivery of the service up to a maximum of 10% (rounded up 
to the nearest day ) of the total number of days may be treated as a 
credit and carried forward into the next financial year.   

 

• Any days which as a result of sickness absence across the Audit 
Team are unused will not be subject to such carry over.  Under such 
circumstances all efforts will be made to deliver the plan but where 
this is not possible all available resources will be focused on the 
highest risk areas to give a reasonable level of assurance.  The cost 
of any such days lost will be deducted from the annual audit fee. 

 
 

Page 103



 3

• Any additional days used in any financial year required for the 
delivery of the service up to a maximum of 10% (rounded up to the 
nearest day) of the total number of days may be treated as a debit 
and deducted from the following year’s allocation subject to the 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee being satisfied that such 
reduction will not have an adverse impact on the delivery of the 
following year’s Audit Plan. 

 
4.1.4. The parties agree that all variations, other than those referred to in the 

clause 4.1.3 above, require the express written consent of both parties. 
 
4.1.5. Notwithstanding clause 4.1.3 above, the Joint Committee may make in 

year changes to the Audit Plan so as to bring the delivery of the Audit 
Plan within budget and within the allocated number of days as set out in 
Schedule 2 .This includes either deleting low priority planned work from 
the Audit Plan or requesting an increase in the Audit Plan where the 
time required for any additional work exceeds the contingency provision 
set out in Schedule 2.  In cases where an increase is requested the 
Council will endeavour to respond to the request dependent upon the 
availability of resources and at such additional cost as agreed between 
the parties. 

 
4.1.6. To pay the Council annually the payments as set out in Schedule 2.  

The payment principles set out in Schedule 2 will apply for the purposes 
of determining the payments paid to the Council by the Joint Committee. 

 

4.2. Service Delivery 
  

4.2.1. The Joint Committee is required to make arrangements for: 
 
4.2.1.1. Allowing Council staff access to the Joint Committee’s  business 

premises at reasonable times for the provision  of the Services 
 
4.2.1.2. The provision of suitable accommodation for the use of the Internal 

Audit Service on the Joint Committee’s business premises, at its own 
cost, as may be necessary. 

 
4.2.1.3. Allowing Council staff access to all relevant assets, records (including 

those belonging to third parties, subject to the Joint Committee having 
lawful authority to do so) documents, correspondence, electronic files, 
software and other systems as may be necessary for the provision of 
the Service. 

 
4.2.1.4. Providing free of charge access to the Joint Committee’s network and 

IT applications including email, intranet and internet and to grant such 
licenses as are necessary to enable a maximum of six Council staff to 
access the Joint Committee’s computer networks at the Joint 
Committee’s offices using the Council’s ICT equipment subject to the 
Council signing a security declaration. 

 
 

Page 104



 4

4.2.1.5. Allowing and facilitating where necessary direct access by the Audit 
and Fraud Manager to the Chair of the Joint Committee and the 
Treasurer (or his nominated representative) for the purpose of 
delivering the Service. 

 
4.2.1.6. The management of risks and the effectiveness of the control 

environment to mitigate risks  
 
4.2.1.7. Approving the Internal Audit Charter and the annual audit plan 
 
4.2.1.8. Considering the Annual Internal Audit Report 
 
4.2.1.9. Taking whatever action it considers necessary as a result of an audit 
 
4.2.1.10. Reviewing its internal control system, including its corporate 

governance and risk management arrangements, and preparing its 
annual governance statement to comply with responsibilities under the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations and relevant CIPFA guidance 
(including the maintenance of an Audit Committee or equivalent). 

 
4.2.1.11. Notifying internal audit promptly of any material change in the risks 

facing the Joint Committee. 
 
4.2.1.12. Agreeing variations to the audit plan during its currency to allow 

Internal Audit to respond to changing risks. 
 

5. MANAGEMENT OF THE SERVICE 

5.1. The Audit and Fraud Manager, is responsible for the management and 
delivery of the service and will in practice fulfil the role of the Head of 
Internal Audit for the Joint Committee.  Any queries arising from specific 
audit reports and general day to day enquiries about the service should 
be addressed to the Audit and Fraud Manager.  
 
Contact details are: 

 
Stephen Carter, Audit and Fraud Manager,  
Internal Audit Service,  
Durham County Council,  
County Hall,  
Durham 
E-mail: stephen.carter@durham.gov.uk 
Telephone 03000 269665 

 
5.2. The Audit and Fraud Manager will report functionality of the audit 

service to the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee who will 
undertake the role of the “Board” for the purpose of the PSIAS and 
Internal Audit activity.  For operational management purposes the Audit 
and Fraud Manager will report to, the Head of Financial and HR 
Services within Durham County Council who is authorised to act on 
behalf of the Corporate Director Resources, the Treasurer to the Joint 
Crematorium Committee. 

Page 105



 5

5.3. The Audit and Fraud Manager and the Head of Financial and HR 
Services and / or the Bereavement Services Manager will meet 
periodically to review performance on delivering agreed services and 
agree any changes to the delivery of the Service. Such meetings may 
be attended by other such persons as either party may wish. 

 
5.4. The Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager at Durham 

County Council is ultimately responsible for the performance and 
effectiveness of services provided to the Joint Committee under this 
agreement.  Any issues concerning any aspect of the delivery of the 
service or terms of this agreement that can not be satisfactory resolved 
with the Audit and Fraud Manager should be referred to the Chief 
Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager.  Contact details are: 

 
Paul Bradley,  
Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager,  
Internal Audit Service,  
Durham County Council, 
County Hall,  
Durham  
E-mail: paul.bradley@durham.gov.uk  
Telephone 03000 269645    

 
5.5 The Audit and Fraud Manager will meet with the Head of Financial and 

HR Services each financial year to consider the audit fee for the 
following financial year.  Such meetings will be scheduled in line with the 
Joint Committee’s normal budget timetable.  (Final confirmation of the 
audit fee provision must be agreed no later than the 31st March in each 
year) and be attended by such other persons as either party may wish. 

 
5.6 In response to audit findings, the Bereavement Services Manager is 

responsible for ensuring: 
 

• Responses to draft audit reports are received within timescales 
specified in the Internal Audit Charter. 
 

• Providing information to substantiate the implementation of audit 
recommendations when requested. 

 
6. FRAUD AND IRREGULARITY 

6.1 The Audit and Fraud Manager will inform senior management, 
Corporate Director, Regeneration and Local Services, the Corporate 
Director, Resources and other appropriate client lead officers of any 
suspected irregularity reported to or discovered by any member of the 
Council’s staff. 

6.2 Client lead officers will notify the Audit and Fraud Manager of all 
suspected fraudulent irregularities. 

 

Page 106



 6

6.3 It will be the responsibility of the Audit and Fraud Manager in 
consultation with senior management to determine the most appropriate 
way to investigate the allegations. Where it is agreed an internal audit 
investigation is to be carried out the day to day management of the 
investigations will be the responsibility of the Audit and Fraud Manager. 

6.4 A contingency provision (as set out in Schedule 2) will be included in the 
Audit Plan to allow for unplanned work to be undertaken.  Use of the 
contingency provision allocation will be agreed between the parties and 
the provisions of clause 4.1.3, (surplus/insufficient contingency days), 
will apply.  

7. INFORMATION AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

7.1. Each party will provide all information within its control necessary to 
enable the other to discharge its obligations under this agreement. 

7.2. Neither party shall, without the written consent of the other party, make 
use of for its own purposes or disclose or allow to be disclosed to any 
person, (except as may be required by law or by an authorised body in 
evaluating the Internal Audit work e.g. external audit), this Agreement or 
any material connected with it.  

8. DATA PROTECTION AND FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

8.1. Each party will: 

8.1.1. Comply with the Data Protection Act 1998 

8.1.2. Maintain the confidentiality of personal data to which it has authorised 
access under the terms of this Agreement 

 
8.1.3. Take reasonable technical and organisational measures against the 

unauthorised or unlawful processing of personal data and against the 
accidental loss of destruction of or damage to personal data (including 
adequate back up procedures and disaster recovery systems). 

 
8.1.4. Provide such assistance and/ or information reasonably required by 

the other in connection with any requests for information received by 
that party under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

9. TERMINATION 

9.1 Either party may terminate the agreement before the 1st April 2020 by 
giving the other not less than 12 months prior written notice. 

10. VARIATION 

10.1. The terms of this agreement may only be varied by written agreement 
signed by both parties 

 

 

Page 107



 7

AS WITNESSED 

 

Signed by:EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE    

  

Duly authorised for and on behalf of DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL  

 

Date 

 

 

Signed by:EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE     

 

Duly authorised for and on behalf of the MOUNTSETT CREMATORIUM JOINT 

COMMITTEE. 

 

Date  

Page 108



 8

Schedule 1 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 
 
The following services may be provided. 
 
Management and Assurance 
 
1. Provision of an independent and impartial audit service in accordance with 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
  
2. Preparation of and annual review of an Internal Audit Charter, setting out 

the terms of reference and audit strategy of how the service is to  be 
delivered, for approval by the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee. 

 
3. Preparation of risk based audit plans in accordance with the agreed 

Internal Audit Charter, for approval by the Mountsett Crematorium Joint 
Committee. 

 
4. Carry out audit (s) as detailed in the scope and terms of reference for each 

annual audit. 
 
5. Follow up, and report upon, progress made by the Bereavement Services 

Manager in implementing agreed audit recommendations. 
 
6. Maintenance of a comprehensive electronic file for each annual audit in 

accordance with best professional practice. 
 
7. Monitoring and reporting of progress made in the delivery of the agreed 

annual audit to Senior Management and the Mountsett Crematorium Joint 
Committee. 

 
Advice  
 
8. Provision of help and advice to the Bereavement Services Manager and 

other officers and nominated members of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint 
Committee on all audit matters. 

 
9. Provision of advice on the risk and control implications of new or changes 

to existing systems or service activities.  
 
Risk Management  
 
10. To provide advice and support on developing strategic risk management 

up to a maximum of days to be agreed annually.  The  scope of this work  
may include: 

 

• Taking a leading role in the annual review of the risk management 
strategy 

• Providing advice and guidance on matters of risk management and 
facilitating risk management training where appropriate. 
 

Page 109



 9

• Supporting risk identification and assessment workshops where 
appropriate. 

 

• Attending the Risk Management Group 
 
Corporate Governance  
 
11. To provide advice and support on corporate governance issues up to a 

maximum of days to be agreed annually.  The scope of this work may 
include: 

 

• Talking a leading role on the review of the corporate governance 
framework. 
 

• Supporting the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement 
 
Counter Fraud  
 
12. To provide advice and support on counter fraud activities.  The scope of 

this work to be agreed annually and may include: 
 

• Targeted reviews to prevent or detect fraud. 
  

• Development of Counter Fraud Strategy and supporting policies and 
plans. 

 

• Counter fraud awareness training and publicity 
 

VFM Reviews   
 
13. To carry out, or provide support to, VFM reviews.   
 
Investigations 
 
14. Investigations into suspected fraud or irregularities  
 
Contingency 
 
15. A contingency provision will be included in annual plans to allow for a 

certain level of unplanned reactive and pro-active work to be undertaken. 
Use of the contingency provision will be agreed between the parties and 
the provisions of clauses 4.1.3, (surplus/insufficient contingency days), will 
apply

Page 110



 10 

 
Schedule 2 

BUDGET SCHEDULE AND ALLOCATED DAYS 
 
 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Annual Fee £5,670 £5,670 £5,670 

AREA    

Management and Assurance 
 

   

Preparation of Annual Audit Review (including 
review, update and agreement of Control Risk 
Assessment (CRA) scope and terms of 
reference) 
 
 

1 1 1 

Production of Annual Report and opinion and 
annual review of Internal Audit Charter and 
periodic review of SLA 
 

2 2 2 

Attendance at ad hoc meetings, Committee pre 
meetings and Committee meetings 
 

1 1 1 

Regular liaison with relevant staff and follow up 
of recommendations 
 

1 1 1 

Fieldwork  
 

   

Detailed audit testing of financial and non-
financial key systems of internal controls, 
including: 
Budget setting and monitoring, financial 
reporting, income, debt collection, creditor 
payments, petty cash expenditure, taxation 
(VAT/PAYE,NI),  bank reconciliation, asset and 
investment management, stock control, specific 
strategic and operational service risks and key 
elements of corporate governance, as agreed in 
the TOR for each annual audit review.  
 

11 11 
 

11 
 

Advice and Assistance/Contingency 
 

2 2 2 

Total 
 

18 18 18 

 

 
Optional Additional Services;  2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Fee £580 £580 £580 

Risk Management & Insurance Support  2 2 2 

Corporate Governance Support    

 
 
 

Page 111



 11 

BASIS OF CHARGE 
 
1. Charges in respect of the period 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2020 will be recharged 

to the Joint Committee using the existing methodology. 
 
2. The cost of providing the internal audit service for the period 1st April 2017 to 31st 

March 2020 will be based on planned audit days of 18 audit days at a charge of 
£315 per day and an annual audit fee of £5,670.  If the risk management and 
insurance option is taken up, the combined annual audit fee is £6,250.   

 

3. This audit fee set out above covers the cost of all planning, management, research, 
preparation, audit visits, follow-up, production of reports, and presentation of reports 
to managers and members, discussions and travelling time.  The daily charge is 
inclusive of all travelling costs and other overheads. 

 
4. Any requests for additional services, including VFM studies, special investigations 

and specific consultancy/project work that can not be accommodated from the 
contingency provision and the provisions of clause 4.1.3 (surplus/insufficient 
contingency) plans will be considered against the availability of the necessary 
resources and skills.  The cost of this work will be subject to the agreement of 
additional fees at an appropriate daily charge, depending on the nature of the work 
required, in accordance with clause 4.1.5. 

 
5. A recharge for fees payable will be annually in arrears based on the actual audit and 

risk management provision and any variances agreed under clauses 4.1.3 and 
4.1.5.  

Page 112


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 June 2016
	4 External Audit Annual Review of the Return for the year ended 31 March 2016.
	Item 4 External Audit Annual Review App 2

	5 Quarterly Performance and Operational Report
	280916-MCJC-Item5-SAMP-App2

	6 Financial Monitoring Report 2016/17: Position at 31/08/16 with Projected Outturn to 31/03/17
	7 Risk Register 2016/17 - Update
	8 Annual Review of the System of Internal Audit
	280916-MCJC-Item8-IntAudit-App2

	9 Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Management Services 2017-2020
	280916-MCJC-Item9-ProvIntAuditSer1720-App2


